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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached.
In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future
profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business
sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should he aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date
information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited collectively and individually accept
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to China Leason Investment Group Co.,
Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:— (1)
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed
in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are
fair and reasonable.
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China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
conducts business principally through its operating arm in China
(the “PRC"), namely, Fujian Shine Science Company Limited and
Shanghai Shine Science Company Limited. The Company was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability in July 2002 and was listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
12 August 2003.

The Group is principally engaged in research and development
of software solutions specially targetting the financial and securities
sectors in the PRC. Headquartered in Fujian, the Group has a
development and servicing network covering cities including
Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Fuzhou where the national stock
exchanges and majority of the financial institutions’ headquarters
are based. The comprehensive spectrum of the Group’s software
solutions was centrally developed in our software development
centres in Fuzhou and Shanghai, and implemented, customized
and supported by our local servicing teams.

Through its years of corporate developments, the Group succeeds
in building up its reputation and brand prestige and has
experienced phenomenal growth. The Group is currently one of
the predominant, preferred solution providers of securities
community in the PRC, rendering hardware, peripherals and
professional services in complement to its corporate software
solution offerings. The Group’s products have received high
recognition especially in the domestic securities community.

As our corporate mission, the Group will work to enhance its
position to be the best solution provider for the financial and
securities sectors in China.
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présent the audited financial results of the Group
ended 31 December 2007.

he past year, China’s securities market revived from the
continuous sluggishness over the previous few years, both the
trading volume and the composite stock indices reaching new
highs. This provided a favorable development opportunity for the
Group’s business expansion of the provision of software solutions
to the finance and securities industry. However, due to the increase
in development costs for research and development as well as
product optimization, coupled with the increase in administrative
expenditures for exploring new businesses, in the year of 2007,
the Group recorded loss attributable to shareholders of
RMB2,500,000.

In 2007, the Group actively engaged in the research of new
products and product optimization, and investments on new
products development and promotional campaigns for our
corporate image and products is generating fruit. Thus the Group’s
profit and turnover will be improved.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

Apart from active development, on 14 June 2007, the Group
announced that in pursuance of the Group’s plan to set up two
coalbed gas-liquefying plants to develop liquefied coalbed gas
business in the PRC, the Group entered into two separate
equipment purchase agreements in relation to the purchase of
liguefying equipment for an amount of RMB153,150,000. The
construction of the two coalbed gas-liquefying plants is expected
to complete in the year of 2008. Then the Group’s profitability is
expected to improve.
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OUTLOOK

The advantage of the continuous development of China’s securities
market and the launch of new clearing products, coupled with
the Group’s leading position in the research and development of
software solutions for China’s finance and securities industry, we
are optimistic about the Group’s outlook in the business of research
and development of software solutions for China’s finance and
securities industry. Meanwhile, the Group is active in the
development of liquefied coalbed gas business, which is expected
to contribute to the stable income of the Group in the long term.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would also like this opportunity

to express our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers
and business associates for their continuous support to the Group.

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

26 March 2008
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During the year, the securities market in the PRC maintained an
upward movement. The Shanghai composite index once reached
a historical high at 6124 points, and the total market capitalization
of the Shanghai and Shenzhen stock markets both broke new
records again. On the market regulation front, regulated
management was realized at a gradual pace. All securities
companies have been categorized into 5 groups and 11 levels by
the regulatory authority for group regulation. The “Working
Guidelines for Regulating Securities Companies by Groups (Trial)”
and related notifications released in July reflected that the brand
new idea of regulating by group that “based upon the risk control
capability of securities companies combining with their market
impact” has been put into practice. In August, the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (CSRC) issued the “Notice of Better
Regulatory Work on Third Party Custodial Account in respect of
the Balance of Settling Transactions for Customers of Securities
Companies”, requiring securities companies to further implement
account regulatory tasks in details truly so as to formally launch
the task of third party custody of the balance of settling transactions
for customers. As the securities market is being regulated and
perfected on a continuous basis, securities companies’ demand
on IT system in terms of business functions and processing

performance is also becoming higher.

The regulatory bodies has been constantly increasing its regulatory
power over securities companies, and grade securities companies
based on their risk prevention capability and business
development, etc., so as to screen out quality companies. As a
result, the competitiveness of quality securities companies will
be strengthened continuously. Following further segmentation and
optimization of securities companies’ customers, the Group’s
competitive strength as a provider of professional information
technology for the securities industry will become more prominent.
This will also drive the Group’s business development.
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Management Discussion

In respect of market share, the Group remains the leader of the
industry that focuses on the research and development of software
solutions for the finance and securities industry in the PRC. With
the exception of a few giant securities companies which develop
their own trading platforms, most securities companies in China
are still using the Group’s platform products as trading platform.
Therefore, the Group would directly benefit from the rapid
development of the Chinese stock market.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

In addition, targeting the third party custody business, the Group
launched E-SIM5.0, a third party custody platform; along with E-
SIM6.0, a new generation of settlement platform with complete

functions and more powerful performance, in a timely manner.

Being the Group’s key product, the third party custody platform
E-SIM5.0 made the largest contribution to the Group’s sales during
the year. Last year, nearly 90% of customers purchased the third
party custody sub-system, generating sales revenue of over
RMB25,000,000 and accounting for 52% of our annual software
sales. The new generation of settlement platform E-SIM6.0
acquired 20 new customers during the year. It is expected that
this product will achieve a more outstanding sales performance
in the next financial year. As for the Group’s other products, the
video system acquired 8 new customers, integrated custody
system acquired 2 new customers and J-Boss, a third party

product, acquired 3 new customers during the year.

Amid a market environment with enormous opportunities and
challenges, the Group also invested in strengthening our product
research and development and customer services so as to
complement the Group’s development.

To cope with the increased demand on maintenance and repair,
on 29 January 2007 the Group purchased from an independent
third party a system that integrates various applications (including
providing network monitoring and security, collecting the network’s
operation data and storing the data in an integrated database,
analyzing the network’s operation data and generating analysis
reports) at a consideration of RMB4,800,000. This system allows
the Group to automate several maintenance and repair tasks, and
to reduce the time technicians need to spend on clients’

maintenance and repair services.
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usiness operations for the two consecutive year
December 2007 was summarised as follows:
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Sales of software HFHEE 29,810 16,387

Sales of hardware e 5,859 764
Maintenances and #ie R H MR

other services fee Iy & 13,730 8,622

Provision of liquefied coalbed gas REBREEESR — —

Total HBEt 49,399 25,773

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of RMB49,399,000
for the year, representing a increase of approximately 91.7%
compared with last year. The increase was mainly attributable to:

° Since the Shine Securities Integrate Management Platform
6.0 was successfully introduced to the market in 2007,
many signed sales contracts were accounted during the
year and therefore, incurred inspiring growth in turnover.

Loss attributable to shareholders was approximately
RMB2,500,000, compared with loss attributable to shareholders
of approximately RMB6,591,000 for last year, mainly due to:

o The Company'’s gross profit for the year was 26,577,000,
an increase of approximately RMB11,183,000 compared
with that of last year, due to a 91.7% or RMB23,626,000
growth in the turnover during the year and therefore, the
Group’s loss attributable to shareholders was improved.

OTHER REVENUES

The major revenue was the tax refund on value added tax for the
sales and distribution of the Group’s own software. The amount
was increased by approximately RMB2,712,000 compare with
last year.
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DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The amount was smaller mainly due to the cost of market
promotion expenses is less than last year as the new products of
the Group became mature and successfully launched in the
market in the year of 2007.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Office expenditures was the major element. The cost was increased
compared with that of last year, mainly due to:

o In order to expand and develop the new business in Shanxi
Province, the Group invested part of the resources in the
developing of the liquified coalbed gas business, and
therefore, incurred additional administrative expenses; and

o The operating of the offices in Beijing and Shanxi Province
respectively, resulted in an increase of expenditure in

relation to rental and salaries, etc.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The other operating expenses were approximately RMB2,665,000
in the year, while it was approximately RMB7,214,000 in the

previous year, and the decrease were mainly due to:

o A decrease in impairment loss on intangible assets from
approximately RMB2,517,000 in 2006 to Nil in 2007;

o Saving in research costs in 2007.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB106,659,000 including total cash, bank and
deposits balances of approximately RMB51,771,000. The Group
has implemented disciplined financial and risk managements. The
Group’s gearing ratio, calculated by dividing Group’s total external
borrowings by its shareholders fund was 7.5%. Further, the Group

had not charged on any of its assets as at 31 December 2007.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any material
transactions or significant investment which are classified as
notifiable transactions as defined under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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(CHANGE EXPOSURE

e Group’s operating transactions, assets and liabilities
imarily denominated in either Renminbi or Hong Kong dollar.
Directors believes that Renminbi will remain relatively stable

ainst Hong Kong dollar in the foreseeable future and considers
~ the Group’s present exposure to exchange risk is relatively minimal.
Currently, no financial arrangements have been implemented for
hedging purpose. Nevertheless, the Directors will closely monitor
and from time to time reassess the exchange risk exposures of
i‘ the Group and enter into non-speculative hedging arrangements

if considered necessary.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The segmental information of the Group was disclosed in note 13
to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As a software solution provider, people are the Group’s most
valuable assets. Accordingly, human resources framework is one
of the Group’s critical strategic policies.

The Group is a “people-oriented” and “equal opportunity”
employer whereas its staff selection and promotion process will
only be determined with reference to employees’ own merits and
their competency in relation to their responsibility. Employee
remuneration includes basic salaries and benefits-in-kind such
as medical and insurance coverage, retirement benefits scheme,
and other discretionary incentives etc.

Employee remuneration is maintained at market competitive level
and will be regularly reviewed within the general framework of the
Group’s human resources system. Remuneration policy is basically
determined with reference to individual performance as well as
financial results of the Group which will be revised from time to

time when performances of staff is warranted.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had an aggregate of 254
employees, of which 144 were research and development staff,
51 were engineering and customer service staff and 14 were
marketing staff. Staff cost, excluding directors’ emoluments, was
approximately RMB19,154,000 (2006: RMB16,603,000 ) for the
year ended 31 December 2007.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Application of Corporate Governance Principles

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate
governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance of
responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in
transparency and disclosure of information to shareholders,
(iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of shareholders
and the recognition of the legitimate interests of
shareholders, and (iv) the improvement in management
of risk and the enhancement of performance by the Group.
The Group has applied the principles set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“HKSE Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing
Rules”) with these objectives in mind.

Promulgation of Company’s Corporate Governance Code
To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of Code on
Corporate Governance (“Company Code”) which sets out
the corporate standards and practices used by the Group
to direct and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by
referencing to the principles, code provisions and
recommended best practices set out in the HKSE Code,
which came into effect on 1 January 2005. In addition to
formalizing existing corporate governance principles and
practices, the Company Code also serves the purpose of
assimilating existing practices with benchmarks prescribed
by the HKSE Code and ultimately ensuring high
transparency and accountability to the Group’s
shareholders.

Compliance of Company and HKSE’s Code’s Provisions
The Group has complied with all provisions in the Company
Code and the HKSE Code with the deviations mentioned
below.
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2005, the Company set up the following
ittees and adopted the company code, being
n code on corporate governance:—

a) Remuneration Committee;

(b) Nomination Committee.

The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of
the HKSE Code and other provisions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than those as
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of the directors of the Company, all directors
have complied with the required standard of dealings and code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors as set
out in the code of conduct for the year 2007.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is entrusted
with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by the direction and supervision of the Company’s
business and affairs.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with two Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) and
Mr. Shi Liang; three Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chang
Jian, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Ye Jinxing and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Yan Chang
Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms. Pang Yuk Fong has appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

R-BEEFNAT=A  ARAFRL T
EFZERLRMAATA MAF 2L ¥
EATA -

A ST R BRI P ST IR 2 BB ST RIMER X
DA R B AL -

ESETERRS

AR AR R — TP R E E BB AR 7548
BIZE5 4815567 (KA AT R EF TS
RH2@TTA  EEADAEFRE LB -
FEEERUE ST LERNIEETRETT
BB REMEFETRS RS 2 AERREAR
BT -

EEgAX
AAERE (EER)IHELNEBNEBET
IFIH S RERARMEH RFEODE -

Exgh/\REFEN  HP—_2BHTESE &
BEIBBEE (R REREE  ZBFNTE
£ BEERZEL BABREERESEELELE 5
SN=ZBBUIFNTEE  BREGESLE  BE
RAEERZEFLL - ZEFLEHAC(LETHRAD
PRERZEXERNRABEF R BEREXN
e

BRI IFRTESDIRAIFER LR RIES.09K1F
HEEBIMER - RARR E2EBIIERNTE
EHCMTEBIER TR RIES.0GFTE R B L IE
ol WRIBEZIESIMNIERRBRELAL -

14 China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited Annual Report 2007



APPOINTMENT TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision of the HKSE Code non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election.
Currently, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-
executive Directors have no set term of office but are subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operations of
the Group are conducted in accordance with the objectives of the
Group. The principal roles of the Board are:

o to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

° to monitor and control operating and financial performance
through the determination of the annual budget; and

o to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of
the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is
responsible for preparing the accounts.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
responsibility to the management staff under the instruction/
supervision of the Board.
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the Company are principally responsible

rcising all such other powers and perform all such other
cts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors,
save and except for those that may specifically be reserved
by the Board/or thee committees set up by the Board for
decision and implementation; or those that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company, the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable Laws and regulations.

2 formulating and implementing policies for business actives,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its
business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the
Board committees upon request.

The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the HKSE Code, the roles of
chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, the Company does
not comply with such Code Provision since the company does
not have any person holding the title of CEO. Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng is the Chairman of the Board and is also performing the
functions of CEO. The Board meets regularly to consider major
matters affecting the business and operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and management and
believes that this structure enables the Group to make and
implement decision promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD OPERATION

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months,
with additional meeting arranged, if and when required. In 2007,
the Board held 12 meetings. The attendance record of each
member of the Board is set out below:

EEgEF
Exg-—ReEE=AACE K
NEHEE EFEN_TTLEER
& BREEEREMNHFELEND

Attendance

HE =R

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
FHRBEE (EE)

Mr. Shi Liang

iBbivtas

Non-executive Director:

FUTES

Mr. Chang Jian
BREkE

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim
PAB TR S

Mr. Ye Jinxing
@At

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
BEERE

Mr. Yan Chang Ming
BRALE

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
ZEFLL

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and
major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
would abstain from voting on the relevant resolution. Minutes of
the Board/committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary

and are open for inspection by Directors.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

11/12

11/12

5/12
9/12

2/12

10/12
10/12

9/12
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breast of his responsibilities as a director
y and of the conduct, business activities and

nt of the Company:

A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every
Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by making
reference to the relevant sections of the statutes or the
GEM Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their
responsibilities in making disclosure of their interests and

potential conflict of interests.

o Orientation programmes are organised for providing
induction to new Directors to help them familiarise with
the Company’s management, business and governance
practices.

° Management provides appropriate and sufficient
information to Directors and the committee members in a
timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest
development of the Group and enable them to discharge
their responsibilities. Directors also have independent and
unrestricted access to senior executives of the Company.

CONDUCT ON SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as referred to in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, having made specific
enquiries to its directors and supervisors, confirms that, throughout
the financial year ended 31 December 2007, all directors and
supervisors met the criteria laid down in the said code for securities

transactions by directors.

EERE
BREEATHERE(RAAREZTNEE - A
RARBHKENTN - EHAPHRER

. BRESHRBRENTHNCESTTM -
(BEEF M EBIEDRE H(BIFER L
HRADMEREMRHESRTHES - RIZE
EEVARTHNER  BREFRERER
BERMEER

. RMTEEERNARRANED - =RHUME
BAGHESAERERZANERE - ¥
RERHER

. BEEBAEENZEEKRBERREREER
FEREM  BUMAMNETRENSHER - N
BHMAETHRE - EFAUAREFEEE
VEBERITHASR -

"HEXZ A
ARREREFTETNERRS - FR—ETER
CBIER EM R AI) 25,485 5.6 71K FTEI X HIRLEH
SRl ARBEMAEEREFIFLHESH I
FEENEFERENBE_TZLF+ A=+
—RALMRFERET LABRESETIESFRS
B 5T AR ZE o

18

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited Annual Report 2007




REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a remuneration committee was established

on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes:—

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on policies and
structure for remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b) to determine the remuneration packages for executive
directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Yan Chang Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. The
duty of Remuneration Committee is to review and determine the
remuneration policy and packages of the executive directors and
executives.

In 2007, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out
below:

EEME _
M FHERRER =53
R B B AR

(@) HEZRSMAEEENZEHTMHER
B RRRVIERMAZHENEFHEL
EHMWHE  MEESRLES

(b) HEFATEEASAEEENHMSES X
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FMZESRARREEBIIFNTESTENR - &
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FHNZE e RAERBRI NEENTEERITRA
B2 HMBR LTS -

FHZEeR —_TTLFELRIT - REH - BXE
BREMHFELEMT

Attendance
HE=R
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BEERE
Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman) 1/1
BRALE (FE)
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong 1/1
ZEFLL

the meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the Directors
by taking into account factors such as remuneration packages
and benefits offered by comparable companies, the respective
contribution of each of the Directors to the Group and the business
objectives of the Group.
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the Company are responsible for
muneration data and market conditions
mance of individuals and the profitability of
nd proposing to the Remuneration Committee for
ion and approval, remuneration packages for the
directors and executives.

OMINATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a Nomination Committee was established
on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes:—

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including

the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and make recommendations to the Board on

the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or reappointment of directors
and succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Yan Cheng Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong.
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In 2007, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out
below:

Mr. Luo Wei Kun

BEERYE

Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman)
BRALE (FE)

Ms. Pang Kuk Fong
ZEFLL

the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Company’s Board of Directors, makes
reference to criteria including, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industry,
professional and educational background, and commitment in
respect of available time and relevant interest. The Nomination
Committee was satisfied with the existing composition of the
Company’s Board of Directors and recommended no change in
the near term.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 28 July 2003
and is currently composed of all three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Yan Chang
Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman). The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
financial statements, interim reports and quarterly reports; (b) To
serve as a focal point for communication between Directors, the
external auditors and internal auditors; (c) To assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system; and (d) To review the
appointment of external auditors on an annual basis as well as to
ensure independence of the continuing auditor.
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e held four meetings. The attendance
r of the Committee is set out below:

Attendance
HE=R
4/4
Mr. Yan Chong Ming 4/4
B RAAE &
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (Chairman) 4/4
TEF L (EFE)

At the meetings, the Audit Committee has carefully reviewed the
Company'’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and its system
of internal control and has made suggestions to improve them.
The Committee also carried out and discharged its other duties
set out in HKSE Code. In the course of doing so, the Committee
has met the company’s management and qualified accountant
several times during 2007. Each member of the Audit Committee
has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditors and the

Management.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs of the results and cash flow for the year. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007, the Directors

have:

o adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on a
going concern basis.
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The company recognises that high quality corporate reporting is
important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the
company and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in all corporate
communications. The annual, interim and quarterly results of the
Company are announced in a timely manner within the required
limits after the end of the relevant periods.

Internal Control

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over
financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2007.
The Audit Committee concluded that, in general, the Company
has set up a sound control environment and installed necessary
control mechanisms to monitor and correct noncompliance. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied
that the Group in 2007, fully complied with the code provisions
on internal controls as set forth in the Code.

External Auditors

The Group’s external auditors are CCIF CPA Limited. The Audit
Committee is mandated to ensure continuing auditors’ objectivity
and safeguard independence of the auditors, and it has:

o determined the framework for the type and authorisation
of non-audit services for which the external auditors may
provide. In general, the engagement of the external auditors
to perform non-audit services is prohibited except for tax
related services; and

o agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring
of employees or former employees of the external auditors
and monitored the applications of such policy.

During 2007, the fees paid to the Company’s external auditors for
audit services amounted to RMB514,000 and for non-audit related
activities amounted to RMB96,000.
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aff who was formerly involved

ognizes the importance of shareholder feedback
d for ongoing communication with its stakeholders,
the general public, investors, and the institutional and
ividual shareholders. The Company published annual, interim
d quarterly reports which contained detailed information about
e Group. Inquiries by shareholders are directed and dealt with
by senior management of the Group.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
EERENEEE

DIRECTOR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 44, has been
appointed as Chairman of the Board, an executive Director and
the compliance officer of the Company since May 2006. From 9
January 2004 to 26 May 2006, Mr. Wang was an executive director
of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited (“Tianjin
Tianlian”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8290), and was responsible for
its business strategies. He graduated from the University of Tianjin
with a bachelor degree in engineering in 1984. Mr. Wang is also a
director of Tianjin Leason Investment Group Company Limited
(REMBERIGESEBEAR A A]). Mr. Wang is a director of Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited and is beneficially interested in 90% of
the entire issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the company which holds
332,790,000 Shares, representing approximately 54% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in these
332,790,000 Shares under the SFO.

Mr. Shi Liang (“Mr. Shi”), aged 39, has been appointed as an
executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a
bachelor degree in Material Science in the Shanghai University of
Science and Technology of the PRC and a master degree in
management from the Business School of the People’s University
in the PRC. He was a vice general manager of Tianjin Tianlian. He
had worked for Jiangsu Nan Tong Electric Melter Company and
Electronic Industrial Division Basic Products Department. He had
also worked for Jiangsu Hua Yong Electronic Group Company as
deputy manager of international cooperation department and
secretary to the board of directors. He had also held various
positions as a project manager, senior manager and an assistant
to executive director in the investment banking of United Securities
Limited, a securities company in the PRC. Mr. Shi owns
approximately 4% interest in Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.
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R B

inancial management, strategic capital planning and treasury
functions of the Group. Mr. Ye previously held various managerial
positions at the Quanzhou City Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China in Fujian Province from 1990 to 1994
and Minfa Securities Company Limited from 1994 to 1999.
Mr. Ye has over 14 years of experience and in-depth knowledge
in domestic banking, capital and money markets. Mr. Ye was
awarded a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Jiangxi College
of Finance and Economics in 1990.

Mr. Chang Jian (“Mr. Chang”), aged 43, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Chang is currently a
supervisor of Tianjin Tianlian and has been working in its corporate
management department. Mr. Chang graduated from the Beijing
Technical College of Economics (3F 72 4% % £ ) with concentration
on Safe Engineering studies. Mr. Chang is a director of Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited and owns 7% interest in Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 33, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Kwok is currently
the company secretary and chief financial officer of Tianjin Tianlian.
Mr. Kwok graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and also obtained a master degree in China
Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Kwok has experience in the field of audit, corporate finance
and financial management, Mr. Kwok is a director of Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited and owns approximately 4% interest in Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 68, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1964 and started
postgraduate studies in the same year. He was awarded a
postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He acted as a
technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine Industrial
Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician, deputy section
chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief engineer in the State
Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical Manufactory Branch during
1969 to 1985. He then worked as a senior engineer, section chief
and assistant factory manager in Tianjin Second Coal Gas Factory
during 1986 to 1992. From 1992 to 2000, he acted as a vice
chief engineer in Tianjin Utility Department and at the same time,
worked as a chief engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office.
After his retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a consultant
of Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin City Gas
Planning Office. Currently, he is an independent non-executive

director of Tianjin Tianlian.

Mr. Yan Changming, aged 44, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in 1986. He
also obtained a master degree in chemical engineering from the
Tsinghua University and University of Ottawa in 1989 and 1994,
respectively. Since 1994, he has been acting as the President of
Canada Cadavisa Investment Consulting Inc. Currently, he is the
vice president and secretary general of the Chamber of Commerce
of Chinese Western Returned Association and the Canada Branch
of Chinese Western Returned Association. He is also the vice

secretary general of all Federation of Returned Oversea Chinese.
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: ong, aged 41, has been a director of the Company
gust 2006. She is an experienced practicing certified
accountant in Hong Kong with over 18 years’ professional
perience in the accounting and auditing. She is a fellow member
he Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
ong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang
holds a master of professional accounting degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Pang’s professional career
started in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She has been the principal
partner in Y. F. Pang & Co., Certified Public Accountants since
1990’s and the managing director of AMC First Plan International
Limited which is engaged in business advisory services in the
Asia Pacific region. Ms. Pang was appointed by the Cuilong Copper
International Holding Limited in 2006 as its independent non-
executive director.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Gu Yun, aged 56, was the division head of software
development. Ms. Gu graduated from the Xiamen University in
1985 majoring in finance in the Department of Finance and
Banking. She joined the Group in December 1997 and assumes
responsibility for strategic planning and business development of
the Group. Before joining the Group, Ms. Gu worked in the Fujian
Branch of the People’s Bank of China from 1976 to 1992 and
had been a vice general manager in Fujian Securities Trading
Centre. Ms. Gu has good and extensive business connections and
has a broad range of experiences in the domestic securities and
banking industries dating back to 1980s.

Mr. Lui Chi Keung, aged 50, has been appointed as the company
secretary, qualified accountant and authorized representative of
the Company since September 2007. Mr. Lui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lui has over 25 years of experience in auditing,

accounting, financial and business management.
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The directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the
“Company”) present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 39.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2007 are set out in the balance sheets on pages 40
and 41 respectively. The cash flows of the Group are set out in
the consolidated cash flow statement on pages 43 and 44.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

F+-A=t+—ALFEzFRREERE
B -

ETEEK
ARTBRERRAT © KHEARZEREBH
WA BRI -

EERDIK
AEEBRAQNRBE_ZEZELF+_A=+—HL
FEZEEDPHNEIVENGABREK

AEEBRARRAR_ZBEZ+F+_A=1+—HB2%
B PERFEIORLI B EERBER - AEE
ZHEEREENFAINAMB 7R BEERER °

ARBEETERIRNBE -

BRA R
AR D R P92 K B 8 3 B0 B 15 SRR Y
31

AEBRARRBRFANZ FEBEDENPBHRERM
7132 °

M= - SR RRE
EEAREZME - BBERR
WRMITELL -

EHFBEERNH

hEREREREERAT —TEr6sn 29



mpany who held office during the year

n-Executive Director
Mr. Chang Jian

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim
Mr. Ye Jinxing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Luo Wei Kun

Mr. Yan Chang Ming

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chang Jian, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Ye Jinxing
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 25 to
page 28 of this report.

CHANGES OF EXECUTIVES

The following changes of executives occurred during the year:

1. Mr. Lui Chi Keung has been appointed as company
secretary, authorised representative and qualified
accountant of the Company with effect from 1 September
2007; and

2. Mr. Lam Kit Sun, has resigned as company secretary,
authorised representative and qualified accountant of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2007.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

(i) There was no transaction which need to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 20 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”); and

(ii) No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business subsisted at the year-end or any time during the
year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors of the Company or the management
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business
which causes or may cause any significant competition with the
business of the Group.
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IEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
IONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
D DEBENTURES

ecember 2007, the interests of the Director and chief
ve of the Company and each of their respective associates
efined under the GEM Listing Rules),
nderlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any

in the Shares,

associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which such Director or chief executive
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERFETHAERKRS - HEK
RESFZEZIAR

RIBZLF+-A=+—8B ARAREFHIE
TTRABREMRESAZHEAL (ERRAIFKR
ETRANDRARB] REMERER (EELIEHF I
BIRBI (TR AR GG BXVER) Z D 1R
0 REHH A EM (@QRIEE S LG RPIEXVELSE
787 BRAM G NN R S B X P 2 #Ean (BFEIRIBE
HFEMEGIZERXEETHEIBTRABRRR
FAEZBERER)  HOREBEZFHRAEEHE
352{FMEAREN AR BIRIBEZFAEF 2 B
ZHEE - HCMRBRIFRR LM ARAE5.46E5.67(F
BHMEARB R FT EmM S

(1 REQXAZERZER

Number of shares/ Approximate %

Name Capacity Nature of Interest underlying shares of shareholdings
] 54 BEME RO/ AERGHE ERESEI L
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Interest of controlled Corporate interest 349,750,000 62%
corporation (Note)
TRBLE REEEER NEEE
(W)

Note: Such shares are owned by Jumbo Lane Investments
Limited.

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 87% interest in the issued
share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and he
is taken to be interested in the shares owned by Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited pursuant to Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).
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(2)

Long position in shares of associated corporations of the
Company:

Director
H®E B EEER

Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
(Note)

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng

FTABEE BEREBRAR (H2)

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
HAEEE BEREER AT

Mr. Shi Liang Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
s ek EEREERAT

Mr. Chang Jian Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
BREE EEREFR AR

Note: Jumbo Lane Investments Limited is a holding Company

of the Group, owns 62% of the shareholding of the Group.
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 87% interest in the issued
share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited. Mr.
Shi Liang and Mr. Kwok Shun Tim each own 4% in the
issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.
Mr. Chang Jian own 3% in the issued share capital of
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware,
as at the 31 December 2007, none of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company and each of their
respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which the Director or chief executive is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
were required, pursuant section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

Name of associated corporation

(2)

Nature of Interest

REBEERDZHR

Percentage

interests in the register
capital of the

associated corporation

1 A8 B % B R

EatE BERZEREHDE

Personal 87%
A

Personal 4%
A

Personal 4%
A

Personal 3%
fEA

Wit - BEREERATD/AEEZEZRAR -
HAEAEEZ62% K - ERBELEAR
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Eo
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3) FERE
cember 2007, so far as is known to the RIEBEELF+-_A=+—H ®AEARTE
d the chief executive of the Company, the ERFETBAERM - TAAL(RRAFE

ing persons, other than a Director or chief executive ERFETRABRIN REREBEZHFRAE

e Company, had an interest or a short position in the 1B EEXVERSE 2 M35 BRI AR B 5 2 1

hares and underlying Shares which would fall to be HBARE  KEBENEEER W SER R

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions FABER TEAEETAEMKE AR ZK

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was directly or indirectly BAD FRE 2RI AR FEE 10 % 3k A

interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any F o RRERACERE IR E T
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all ™

circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group, or held any option in respect of such capital:

Long positions in shares R Z2HE
Percentage of

Name Number of Shares Nature of Interest shareholding

" BRHEEE ERtE BFREAE

Jumbo Lane 349,750,000 Beneficial owner 62%

Investments Limited (Note 1)

B@EREAARAR (A1) EnBEAA

Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 2) 349,750,000 Interest of spouse 62%

et (HiE2) BB #am

Notes: fifat -

1. The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Wang 1. ItiEmN EX [ E SR M EEREET
Zhong Sheng in the paragraph headed “Directors’ BABRG - HEARD REH 2 BRmIOA
interests” and Chief Executive’s Interests or short portions Bl—BYTEEATEBEE# -
in shares, underlying shares and debentures interests
above.

2. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is 2. RIEFESREK - R (EEBT
deemed to be interested in her spouse’s interest in the & 27 BeAB) IMER AR AR BIER AR B
Company which represent the same parcel of Shares held mo iR HEEREBRAGFEZ
by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant to the SFO. B—H#LRR %
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-

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
who, as at 31 December 2007, had an interest or a short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group or held any option in respect
of such capital.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
and chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 25.9% of the Group’s total
sales for the year while the single largest customers accounted
for approximately 9.7% of the Group’s total sales during the year.

Whereas external purchase, mainly arising from its hardware resale
operations, only accounted for about 16.3% of the Group’s cost
of sales during the year, the top five suppliers of the Group for the
year under review together accounted for approximately 20% of
the Group’s total purchases for the year and the single largest
supplier accounted for approximately 4.0% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any
shareholders of the Company who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interests in the

Group’s five largest customers and suppliers above mentioned.
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any significant contingent liabilities as at

ENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

lar of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
ut in note 34 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, warrants
or instruments carrying other similar rights as at 31 December
2007.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2007 neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed Shares.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. CCIF CPA
Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

26 March 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT
GROUP CO., LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 39 to 135, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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dit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
ued. by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
ts. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
ements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
ance as to whether the financial statements are free from
terial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2008

Ho Chun Shing
Practising Certificate Number P0O4396
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

—EELHF

Note RMB’000
Bt & AR¥ T

Turnover =E 3 5&13 49,399
Cost of sales $HE R AR (22,822) (10,379)
Gross profit EF 26,577 15,394
Other revenue and net income H At s 28 2 B IR 6 10,063 5,848
Distribution costs BN =19 (5,699) (7,741)
Administrative expenses TEAX (25,569) (12,905)
Other operating expenses HME R (2,665) (7,214)
Finance costs A& KA 7(c) (1,742) —
Profit/(loss) before income tax BT HATRER (BE8) 7 965 (6,618)
Income tax TS 8(a) (3,465) 27
Loss for the year REEEE (2,500) (6,591)
Attributable to: T3 G :

Equity shareholders of the Company 22 &l #EZ5 A% R 11 (2,500) (6,591)
Dividend R F — —

RMB(cents) RMB(cents)
ARM () AR ()

Loss per share BREE

Basic R 12(a) (0.49) (1.39)

Diluted b5 12(b) N/A F3E A N/A 3 A

The notes on pages 45 to 135 form part of these financial

statements.
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As at 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

RZZEZLF+_A=+—H UARKBZIE)

2007 2006
—EZTLHF —EEREF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR¥FT T AR®EF T
ent assets ERBEE
rty, plant and equipment M - MR R 14(a) 23,367 3,710
paid lease payments for LERNTRN L HHEES
land under operating leases 15 3,542 1,568
Intangible assets B EE 16 7,110 12,625
Deposits for acquisition of property, — URBE¥ 3 - #82 K &
plant and equipment 2R & 17 34,600 —
Deposits for acquisition of interests W ESAE E A T L b kEzs
in land under operating leases ZE & 18 11,549 —
80,168 17,903
Current assets mEEE
Prepaid lease payments for LEMHTREMN MBS
land under operating leases 15 143 87
Trading securities BFEH 20 4,313 2,992
Inventories FE 21 769 120
Trade and other receivables JrE U BR 5% % EL b fE W R IE 22 24,173 20,195
Tax recoverable A Y B FE IR 23 1,312 794
Fixed bank deposits SRITEBRTER 24 6,624 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 25 45,147 15,009
82,481 39,197
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables JE 5 B 5 B EL Ah FE {<) SR IE 26 43,783 12,645
Deferred income PEE U A 27 1,750 1,616
Bank borrowings SRITER 28 7,960 —
Tax payable FE L IE 29 1,644 70
55,137 14,331
Net current assets REBEEFE 27,344 24,866
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 107,512 42,769
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 30 (853) (441)
NET ASSETS EEFE 106,659 42,328
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRRE
Share capital % < 31(a) 5,922 5,014
Reserves = 32(a) 100,737 37,314
TOTAL EQUITY 48 R 7% 106,659 42,328
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EFeR =TT NF=-A -+ BEERILET
26 March 2008. o
EE 3
Director Director

The notes on pages 45 to 135 form part of these financial

statements.
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As at 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
REZZZ+F+-A=+—HUUAREFE)

= 3 53

Note RMB’000
b= ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E o Y e 14(b) 1,598
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&E 19 67,992
69,590
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables i AT BR 3R R L i e U BR 3R 22 20,045 20,330
Cash and cash equivalents BERRSEEY 25 5,496 1,373
25,541 21,703
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables P& BR 3R R EL b B 5 3R T8 26 (15,002) (4,143)
Net current assets REBEERE 10,539 17,560
NET ASSETS EEZRE 80,129 23,960
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREE
Share capital &% 7R 31(a) 5,922 5,014
Reserves il 32(b) 74,207 18,946
TOTAL EQUITY 48 R 2% 80,129 23,960

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 March 2008.

The notes on pages 45 to 135 form part of these financial statements.
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EF

Director

EF

Director
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZETLEF T A= —HLEFE AARESE)

KARERRFEL
Retained
Common profits/
welfare Share (accumulated Minority
Share Share Merger General reserve option  Translation osses) interests
capital  premium reserve reserve  AREF reserve reserve  REER/ Total  JERR Total
BE  RHEE AfEE -RER R BRERE RERE (2HER) @t B @i
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
1 January 2006, i 3
as previously reported —-A-R
HEUEER) 5014 34,845 (2,351) 2,903 1,421 603 97) 6,333 49,226 155 49,381
Transfer to general reserve B3| (&
(note 32(a)) (B3t 32(2) = = — 1,421 (1,421) = = = = = =
At 1 January 2006, RZEERE
as restated —B—R (&} 5014 34,845 (2,351) 4,324 — 603 97) 6,333 49,226 155 49,381
Exchange differenceson ~ 2ESEEE
translation of financial BBRERL
statements of ERER
foreign entities — — — — — — (307) = (307) = (307)
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - - (6591  (6,591) — (6,591)
Profit appropriations ey aNe — - - 106 - — = (106) = = =
Total recognised income ~~ AEERIMA
and expenses for the year  RATAE — - = 106 = = (B07) (6697  (689) - (6,898)
Forfeiture of employee BAHZES
share options iR - - - - — (603) — 603 = — -
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAR — - — — - - - — = (155) (155)
At 31 December 2006and B =FE %
1 January 2007 +-fA=t+-AH
RZEELE
-A—-H 5014 34,845 (2,351) 4430 — — (404) 79 42,328 — 42,328
Exchange differenceson ~ HEHNEIEE
translation of financial BBREL
statements of ERER
foreign entities — — — — — — (67) — (67) — (67)
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - - (25000 (2,500) — (2,500)
Profit appropriations B2 R — — = 921 = = — (921) = = =
Total recognised income ~~ AEEHBMA
and expenses for the year  REX A8 - - = 921 = — (67) (3,421) (2,567) — (2,567)
Issue of new shares B 908 65,990 - - — — — — 66,398 = 66,898
At 31 December 2007 RIZZLE
+=R=t-H 5,922 100,835 (2,351) 5,351 — — (471) (2,627) 106,659 — 106,659

The notes on pages 45 to 135 form part of these financial FA58 £ 1358 7 M sE AR B 53k = H A 315

statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2007
—EELHF

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Operating activities R
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISB A=A, (B8) 965
Adjustments for: PP HIEFE
Depreciation e 1,570
Amortisation of prepaid lease KRN TN
payments for land under - 3b 78 5 2 5
operating leases 134 87
Amortisation of intangible assets I & O 5,515 5,859
Impairment loss on EREERBEEE
intangible assets — 2917
Interest income A B U A (261) (268)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W — (160)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - S
plant and equipment K& 2 B8 7 2
Net realised and unrealised BB EBER
gains on trading securities RER W FEE (3,676) (1,518)
Impairment loss on trade JE YL BR SR B B 18
receivables 597 —
Write off of trade and PRI R A R E A 1,694 —
other receivables JE WK TR 3 8
Write back of impairment loss on & W AR ORI B
trade receivables E5 18 B [l (25) (557)
Interest expenses on bank RIT AR H A5 5K
advances and other borrowings Z B 281 —
Other borrowing costs H A {5 B AN 1,461 =
Operating profit before changes RETEEESE A
in working capital 2 A& 5 8,262 700
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FE @gm R (649) 1
Increase in trade and other JE U BR 30 R LA
receivables JE IR FR T8 38 0 (6,019) (6,605)
(Increase)/decrease in A Uk B FE T8 (38 hn) R A
tax recoverable (518) 252
Increase in trade and other JFE 151 B 3R B L At < SR IE
payables 90 31,138 5,498
Increase in deferred income i S YA 38 0 134 70
Cash generated from/(used in) RELEEE (BH) 2
operations BE 32,348 (84)
Tax paid EATIE
PRC enterprise income tax paid EAP RSN (1,479) (1,296)
Net cash from/(used) in operating REEKEES (BAH) 2
activities ReFE 30,869 (1,380)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

statements.

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEX
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR ARBT T
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from disposal ﬁEW%
of subsidiaries Fr S 3 — 965
Payment for purchase of property, ,5%,\%% &%‘%
plant and equipment P& E O (21,252) (1,179)
Proceeds from disposal of HEY - #a
property, plant and equipment &uxﬁﬁfr?%f’x 16 233
Prepaid lease LA
payments for land under SEEN ki
operating leases (2,164) —
Payment for purchase of BEEFEE LA
intangible assets — (10,404)
Payment for deposits for iﬁ”ﬁlﬁ%#’%ﬁ 125
acquisition of property, Rl € 2 A
plant and equipment (34,600) —
Payment for deposits for Uk BAEBHEOT
acquisition of interests in TR
land under operating leases 2 T8 (11,549) =
Payment for purchase of BEESHES LA
trading securities (35,575) (86,805)
Proceeds from disposal of HEESES
trading securities FT 5718 37,750 87,084
Increase in amounts due B U 2 2 A AR AT
from securities broker firms SKIFIE A0 (225) (5,485)
Increase in fixed bank deposits 8217 7E HAfF F4E AN (6,624) —
Interest received B U H B dA 261 268
Net cash used in investing activities BREFHHAZERSFHE (73,962) (15,323)
Financing activities A& EE
Net proceeds from issue BT AR FT1S 5E
of new shares FRE 66,898 —
Proceeds from new bank FTILRITIBE R Z
borrowings FriS 338 15,920 —
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITENK (7,960) —
Interest expenses on bank HR1T B H At {5 5K
advances and other borrowing ZHE X H (281) —
Other borrowing costs paid EMBEEERA (1,461) —
73,116 —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeRELZEEY
and cash equivalents i, (Bd) $58 30,023 (16,703)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BzHE
at 1 January RESZEEY 15,009 32,018
Effect of change in foreign IEHIRBEHIE
currency translation 115 (306)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—HA=+—-H2Z
at 31 December ReRESEEY 25 45,147 15,009
The notes on pages 45 to 135 form part of these financial FALHE 1358 2 MIFEAEMK I S sz E AP 1D o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 July 2002
under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
development and sales of computer software, resale of
hardware, provision of system integration and maintenance
services; and manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed
gas.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi “RMB”, which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”).
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fuﬂﬁﬁxﬁ%?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬂ_
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CCOUNTING POLICIES
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE-TELE+-A=+—BILFE GAREE)
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Rz gt ERIURBERARGRDIZ
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MR Z AW EGEX - NEERA
BEREZSTBREGBAR T -

BRI RE D RSB MEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

b)

BASIC OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except financial instruments classified as trading
securities which are stated at their fair value as
explained in note 2 (d) below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity to HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

MBEBREKEE
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c)

NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIC OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are discussed in note 4.

SUBSIDIARIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZ+F+_A=+—BHILtFE UAAREFIE)
2. EESTBE®
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Notes to the Financi

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

SUBSIDIARIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS
(Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minoarity interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total profit
or loss for the year between minority interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any future losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)).

2.

FESHHE®
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NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

OTHER INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY
SECURITIES

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only
data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification.

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially stated
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in the income statement.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated in
the balance sheet at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the balance sheet at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2. FESTTEE®
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.

d)

OTHER INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY
SECURITIES (Continued)

Other investments in securities which do not fall
into any of the above categories are classified as
available-for-sale investments and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except foreign
exchange gains and losses in respect of monetary
items such as debt securities which are recognised
directly in the income statement. Where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement. When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(h)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group and/or the Company commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

d)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii)).

— buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the fair
value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease
(see note 2(g)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in reserves.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to the income statement to the
extent that it exceeds the amount held in
the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will
be credited to the income statement to the
extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect
of that same asset had previously been
charged to the income statement.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
ZHFET AT —HIEFE UARKSIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

e)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in the income statement
on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

— Buildings held for own use ~ Over the shorter of
unexpired term of the
leases and 20 years
— Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
unexpired term of the
leases and 20 years

— Computer equipment 3 —byears
— Furniture and equipment 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 — 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)). Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2(h)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives which are determined
by the directors to be finite. Capitalised
development costs with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives of not exceeding

five years.

Both the period and method of amortisation and
any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible

asset is indefinite are reviewed annually.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

g)

LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
the income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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CCOUNTING POLICIES

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities
and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable date that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtors;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

— For unquoted equity securities and
current receivables that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment
losses for current receivables are
reversed if in a subsequent period
the amount of the impairment loss
decreases. Impairment losses to
equity securities are not reversed.

— For trade and other current
receivables financial assets carried
at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)

i) Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

— If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is
recognised in the income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in the income
statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortistation)
and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on the asset
previously recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through
the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in equity.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised
in the income statement.
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ii)

CCOUNTING POLICIES

PAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

— prepaid lease payments for land
under operating leases;

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)
h) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued) h) EERE (&)
i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) i) AMEEREE) .'
Calculation of recoverable amount —  FEAKEEE ;
=
The recoverable amount of an asset BEZWEISRERERL -
is the greater of its net selling price FHEBERFERERZ

and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating unit are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.
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[ ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)
if) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to
the income statement in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. FESTTEE®
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i)

)

k)

INVENTORIES (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
(see note 2(h)(i)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)).

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

2. FEGHBEE®

)

k)

BE (&)

EhFER  ARFEZREESR
B aERRZ MERRARMAX -
i A 15 17 EMOUR = ] 3R 5B 2 BUR
REREFEZMABRRHURL LR
EREPEERRFAX - WEFEZA
B30 J5H(E 38 hn T % (B (T OB - BB
RSB/ LR B R ER S
M 2 F H BB DR

P Wi B % e EL At FE W R IR

TR Wt B R e L At R RIS TR # HR AR
NFEER - HRREERAL TR
ZEMGBREBRIK (R WME
2(h)(M) - A RTIREFRIERG TH
BEATZREER (WEREMEEE
FHSITI 2 R ELAEAR) RIERSD -
REZEBERT - AREFRIEGIZE AR
I BEARIZARA R E RIS R (R
2(h)(@) °

s E AR

FHRERNFRATFEREIEX SN
AHER - RYIFTHERR - HEMEKIR
BT - VIS HER S EED
BEMNEAZRE EREARNHE R
ER) @EEFTHANERNZENE

hEBEREREERAT — TS558 03



TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.

n) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

i)

iii)

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
are required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and mandatory central pension
schemes organised by the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) government are
recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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i)

iii)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

iii) (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the income statement
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to the retained profits).

0) INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE_ZTALF+_A=+—HIEFEURAREIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Current tax is expected tax payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.

2.

R ETE L

FESHHE®

0)

&8t ()

BIEIR R F AL ERBA - R
RERERIERERIHE ALK
BEFERBVRAEMAE LG
FHEBBIA

2> Bl R AT AR N AR B = A A
ZEEHRREERAE - E M H
BeEERABRAERAREZE
B BEEHREENE RS BHRE
BRABANAERES -

BRETHISMEILIN - fid B 1R ERRTR
MBE R RELSHA] T AERNEE - Bl
HRAAEEREREMELEHESR
E - BRERBGE A B R BRI R
BIER RS 28 2 AR RS 258
EEZEERBEE @ HEXFERA
B[R — WG HE R —ERHE R

B8 - TR S 1 A HRER S Z ER TR A
B 0 2 A8 [F) H3M) 2 88 O] sk A R A
REEEARBEEBR 2 HEREL - 1©
EIRBRERRAVBRREEISS AT AN
FERR 1 AR B A O B IR B 18 SO BR 2 IR
EFIREER - A ERRAAERAZER -
IR EZREEBR — R EE KR —
ERER - ARTEHAB AR EN A
TRABA CERR AR - %FE
BT ARE -

TEBERRESERRAR —_ TR LFERH

67



NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities
if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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q)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as follows:

i) Sales of software and hardware

Revenue is recognised when the Group has
transferred to the customer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.
Revenue excludes value added and
business taxes, and is after deduction of any
goods returns and trade discounts.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

q) REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

if)

fii)

iv)

V)

Income from provision of maintenance and

other services
Revenue from maintenance and other
services is recognised at the time when the

service is performed.

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted

investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed

investments is recognised when the
share price of the investments goes
ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Value added tax refunds
Value added tax refunds are recognised

when the acknowledgement of refunds from
the Tax Bureau has been received.
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CCOUNTING POLICIES

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
balance sheet initially as deferred income
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in the income statement on a
systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised in the income
statement as revenue on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset.

r) DEFERRED INCOME

Warranty costs are received in advance for the
whole period under warranty and are recognised
in the balance sheet initially as deferred income.
They will be deferred usually for one year and
subsequently charged to the consolidated income
statement when incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

s)

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of
the Company is Hong Kong dollars and the
presentation currency is RMB. The reason for using
RMB as a presentation currency of the Company is
that the functional currency of the substantive
entities within the Group is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into RMB at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.
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t)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximately the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into RMB at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a
separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before
1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition
of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the income statement
on disposal.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income
statement in the period which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

t)

u)

BORROWING COSTS (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

RELATED PARTIES

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

i) the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a
joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;
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V)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals;

V) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in note 2(u)(i) or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
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BE-T

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
ZHFETZA=T—RHIEFE URARKSIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v)

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of
these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financial

expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs and Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company.

There are no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However, as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, there have
been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure
and presentation. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in note
58

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional
disclosure requirements to provide information about the
level of capital and the Group’s and the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are set out in note 31(b).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial

instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 38).
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Notes to the Financial Statemen-t

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE_ZTALF+_A=+—HIEFEURAREIE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset or derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test. The Group determines whether an
asset is impaired at least on an annual basis or
where an indication of impairment exists. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
asset. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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Bt (WEER) ROGBEERGERER o

RT— B BREEERARRSEHEENE
BHEEEELEABEOEHNBREE
m -

a) M BBERRERE

RTEEEERTRELZAEBUN
BZEHRETBEFE  AEEEYH
BEREFELHE - 5 ZFME : 0)
ERERALNRFEEEEEZLS
- AXEEEBECEBRSHES
ENEFE  (WVEEZREEELSE
AEBEME 2 REFE(RBFER
REEXTBEREEMEL MG A
SR R>DRERR S RETRRIK A
ERZEEIZRR  BRE%FHES
MEFRRRERBEE M E T AR
B BEEABEETREKTER
WE2BR (BRRASTETRR ST 2R,
RAERGRERRR) 2B SHREF
ERERATAERZRERFR - KN
SEELEBFETEESR IR
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- BEAKEGFTEEZAHRK
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c)

d)

COUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
URCES OF ESTIMATION
RTAINTY (continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to previous estimates, or will
write off or write down technically absolete or on-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2(h)(ii). The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units are determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the intangible assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the amortisation in the year
and the estimate will be changed in the future
period.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

e)

f)

Impairment of receivables

The policy for impairment on receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment may be required.

Taxation

The Group is subject to various taxes in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that are initially recorded, such differences
will impact the tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

4, BIREHHERE
ZEERR @)

e)

f)

FE WK IR 2 B
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y'is an investment holding company. The
a ac.tivities of the Group are development and sales
mputer software, resale of hardware, provision of
tem integration and maintenance services; and
manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed gas.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied and
services provided to customers, which excludes value-
added and business taxes, and is after deduction of any

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

5.

X8

ARBI/REERRE - AEEZ EEXH
REMBMRABRHEE  BHEE  ZHX
ER R EERT - ARBRIEEBREER
HE °

LEEBEREPREMER MR 2HEE -
M BIEIRER RE XD - WRINERTAR
BREEFTNRIE - FAREXBERZ

goods returns and trade discounts. The amount of each FEEEANNSHERSENT ¢
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover
during the year is as follows:
2007 2006
—ZELF —ZTEXRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR¥ET T
Sales of software M E 29,810 16,387
Sales of hardware e 5,859 764
Maintenance and other services fees #1& [z B {th R 75 U & 13,730 8,622
Provision of liquefied coalbed gas REREHEER — —
49,399 25,773
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6.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 6.

—EELHF
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Value-added tax refunds BERRTD 5,527
Net realised and unrealised Bo5BH BEE R
gains on trading securities RER W F 3,676
Interest income from bank deposits R 1717 2 Fll B U A 261
Government grants received B IR BURT 2R 233 213
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QA Z Wk — 160
Write back of impairment loss JFEE U5 B SR 1 B 48 8 o)
on trade receivables 25 557
Net exchange gain HNEE H 3R SRR 141 —
Others H 200 317
10,063 5,848

hEREREREERAT —TELEEE 03




For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. HRFAEBLAZER, (B8)

0ss) before income tax is arrived at after charging: HMBRFBHATZ G, (BER) BEINHRIAT
FI8 -
2007 2006
—EZTtLHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBTT
Staff costs (excluding (a BImK
directors’ remuneration (FTEMEFIZEESMS)
in note 9)
Salaries, wages and Fe - LER
other benefits E iR 17,832 15,545
Retirement benefit RRAEF T B
scheme contributions 1,322 1,058
Total staff costs # 48 8 T gk AN # 19,154 16,603
Less: Amount capitalised as W BEER B AR
development costs (note 16) 2 FE (fizE1e) — (10,404)
19,154 6,199
(b)  Other items (b) HfwEHE
Cost of inventories sold and EHTERIRHERS
services rendered # Z A # 22,822 10,379
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN & 514 403
Depreciation # TE# 1,570 1,356
Amortisation of prepaid lease LEM A TR i
payments for land Gishor: &2
under operating leases 134 87
Amortisation of intangible assets I B O 5,515 5,859
Impairment loss on
intangible assets | EERBEEE — 2,517
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BRREE
plant and equipment Z 1B 7 2
Impairment loss on FEUBR R 2 R B 18
trade receivables 597 —
Write off of trade and JFE 52 B 3R B L Ath e L
other receivables FIB M SE 1,694 —
Operating lease charges in THIREF 2 &
respect of land and buildings HAER 987 387
Net exchange loss HNEE I B B 48 F R — 235
Research costs 95 Bk X — 3,871
# Cost of inventories sold and services rendered EHTERREERE ZKAEIE

includes staff costs of approximately
RMB10,629,000 (2006: RMB2,204,000) and
depreciation charges of approximately
RMB339,000 (2006: RMB83,000) that are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above for each of these types of
expenses.

8 TR A4 AR #10,629,0005T
(ZZZREF : AR¥2,204,000
T)RMERAIZIHODARE
339,000 (ZZTRE : AR
#83,0007T) *© At A Lt &6
THEANSEWBEZBSEN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE_ZZLtF+_A=+—HLEFE ARARK?IE) o
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. HIEBRFrEFaA
(Continued) (#)
2007 ' SN
—ZEELF T3
RMB’000
AR¥T T
(c)  Finance costs (c) ®ERE
Interest expense on bank FRAFERNEE]EEZ e
advances and other RITBRRHEMEE 3
borrowings wholly ZHERZ
repayable within five years 281 —
Other borrowing costs H b5 E A 1,461 =
Total borrowing costs FERER= DN 1,742 =

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. &HZEelEZX®RZFIEBH

INCOME STATEMENT
a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement a) GEBRRZEHIE
represents:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Current tax - B EA T 18 —
PRC enterprise income tax PESEMER
Provision for the year REFE A 2,115 338
Underprovision for BAEFERBTR
the prior year 938 31
3,053 369
Deferred taxation EAET IE
Origination and reversal of Ry = 58 OR
temporary differences R E
(note 30) (ft#£30) 412 (396)
Income tax charge/(credit) FRE#BIE  (ER) 3,465 (27)

hEREREREERAT —TELEEE 8D



IN THE CONSOLIDATED
TATEMENT (continued)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

Note:

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits for the
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof during
the year.

Fujian Shine Science & Technology Limited (“Fujian Shine
Science”), which is a subsidiary of the Company and
obtained the approval from PRC tax authority on 26
February 2003, is exempted from PRC enterprise income
tax for the two years starting from its first profit-making
year after Fujian Shine Science became a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise, and is entitled to a 50% relief on PRC
enterprise income tax for the subsequent three years.
Fujian Shine Science began its first two profitable year in
the years ended 31 December 2003 and 2004, and was
subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 12% for
three years ended 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007.
Provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been made
in the financial statements of Fujian Shine Science for
the year ended 31 December 2007. No provision for PRC
enterprise income tax has been made in the financial
statements of Fujian Shine Science as Fujian Shine
Science has no assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2006.

Shanghai Shine Science & Technology Limited (“Shanghai
Shine Science”), which is a subsidiary of the Company
and obtained a certificate of “Software Enterprise” on 10
April 2002, is entitled to a 50% relief on PRC enterprise
income tax. Accordingly, Shanghai Shine Science is
subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 15%
(2006: 15%) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

BE

8.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
tEFETZA=ZT—HIEFE URARKSIE)

—==

REBEBERZFER @
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
tEFETZA=ZT—HIEFE UARKSIE)

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

No provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
made in the financial statements of Fuzhou Xinwangluo
Network Company Limited (“Xinwangluo”), as Xinwangluo
has sufficient tax loss to offset the assessable profits for
the year ended 31 December 2007. No provision for PRC
enterprise income tax has been made in the financial
statements of Xinwangluo, as Xinwangluo has no
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2006.

No provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
made in the financial statements of Shanxi Yangcheng
Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited
(“Yangcheng Energy”) and Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy
Development Company Limited (“Qinshui Energy”),
subsidiaries of the Company, as Yangcheng Energy and
Qinshui Energy have no estimated assessable profits for
the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“New Law") by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC.
On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax
rate from 33% to 25% for Xinwangluo from 1 January
2008..

8. HMER@ERZ

a)

REBRBRZMEHE (B

BaE : (8

BREM B AER AR AR (FTEHNE
FDREBE_FZLE A= HiE
FEHEE RAVIBEREHE BRG] -
O B AR I R B R PR S FRAE
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T A=+ —HLEFREIEEF RS
A E BT ER A HRER T
REIGERSRIEDER

AARIMERRLFEGRIERERERE
AR ([ EEIR]) K L PEb K IEZRREIR
BRAERAR (DUKER) REE_ZF
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BRI A H B TSRk h R B R PR 1S
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For the

N THE CONSOLIDATED
MENT (continued)

Reconciliation hetween tax charge/(credit) and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates is as

8.

year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

REBEBERZFER @

BRERRRFEZBEIE  (ER)
HEEERN (BB) 2HROT :

b)

follows:
2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Profit/(loss) before income tax 1Bk AT 1S R ATE F, (E548) 965 (6,618)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) BB REATEGTE
before income tax, ZBR TSR AT T,
calculated at the (B518) BEMIE
rates applicable to the
countries concerned (824) (1,439)
Tax effect of EIEiV: 1753
non-deductible expenses 2B E 919 920
Tax effect of B AR W=
non-taxable income 2B E (28) (1,558)
Tax effect of tax losses not AR R IB BB
allowed for tax deduction 2R 2 1,374 1,213
Tax effect of unused tax REER AR A BIE
losses not recognised EBENH G E 597 1,010
Tax effect of utilisation of tax ~ ARIERE AT B EE
loss not recognised SO (205) (37)
Underprovision/(overprovision) i {F 4 £ iE 3E &7 78 £
of deferred tax in prior years @,/ (FRZa &) 694 (167)
Underprovision of current BEFERVEARIE
tax in prior years BETE 938 31
Income tax charge/(credit) Frigfifess i (%) 3,465 (27)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9.
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: N
2007
—EZELHF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Fees GiaAcy 146 168
Salaries and other emoluments & K E b B 2,169 3,048
Bonus TEAL — 33
Retirement benefit RRAEF 5T &)
scheme contributions HER — 14
2,315 3,263
Details of directors’ remuneration by individuals for the year HEZTTLFTZA=T—HLEFE ' @
ended 31 December 2007 are as follows: BIALTZEEMESFIBTOT :
Employee  Retirement
Salaries share benefit
and other option scheme
emoluments benefits contributions
Fees FoH Bonus EEE BHUEAN Total
BE HtbFH A RERF  HEMEXR Foh
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HiTES
Wang Zhong Sheng B — 970 — — — 970
Shi Liang H85% — 776 — — - 776
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chang Jian TE — 194 — — = 194
Kwok Shun Tim PafE — 194 — — — 194
Ye Jinxing ey — 35 — — — 35
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Yan Chang Ming BxH 48 — — — — 48
Luo Wei Kun BHE 49 — — — — 49
Pang Yuk Fong ZE5 49 — — — — 49
146 2,169 — — — 2,315

TEBBRREEEERAT —ETLFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

UNERATION (continued) 9. EEME »

rectors’ remuneration by individuals for the HEZTTAF+ZA=T—HLFE ' [@
nded 31 December 2006 are as follows: BIATZEEMESFIBTOT :

Employee  Retirement

Salaries share henefit
and other option scheme
emoluments benefits contributions

Fees HeH Bonus EEE BHEA Total
we  HitE A RERA  FHEMEX @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTR

Executive directors TES
Wang Zhong Sheng (note 1) T (D — 1,024 — — — 1,024
Shi Liang (note 1) 5 (fEE1) — 819 — — — 819
Gu Yun (note 2) BE (2 - 208 11 - 3 222
Qiu Yixin (note 2) B8 = (Rt 2) — 233 - - - 233
Li Xiaoyuan (note 2) Z/h e (i EE2) — 22 2 — 1 25
Jiang Yulai (note 2) TER(ME2) — 66 3 — 3 72
Chen Yunrong (note 2) Br=# (H:E2) — 137 10 — 4 151
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chang Jian (note 1) B (D — 205 — — — 205
Kwok Shun Tim (note 1) et (1) — 205 - - - 205
Chen Qun (note 2) BB (fizE2) — 19 - - - 19
Ye Jinxing (note 5) ES D) — 110 7 — 3 120
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Yan Chang Ming (note 3) AR (M 5E3) 18 — — — — 18
Luo Wei Kun (note 3) ‘s (f:F3) 18 - — — — 18
Pang Yuk Fong (note 3) ZEF (fizE3) 18 — — — — 18
Choy Tak Ho (note 4) g (i) 45 — — — — 45
Liu Bo (note 4) 2% (P 3t4) 18 — — - - 18
Sin Ka Man (note 4) BR SR (i E4) 51 - - - - 51
168 3,048 33 — 14 3,263
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Note:

1. Appointed as executive director on 16 May 2006.

2. Resigned as executive director on 16 May 2006.

Sh Appointed as independent non-executive director on 15
August 2006.

4. Resigned as independent non-executive director on 15
August 2006.

B, Redesignated as non-executive director on 16 May 2006.

Certain directors were granted options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The details of the share options
granted and outstanding in respect of each director as at
31 December 2007 and 2006 are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the directors’ report
and note 33.

During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, no
directors waived any emoluments. No inducement
payments to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any
director for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

Each of the executive directors entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and
these contracts shall continue thereafter until terminated
by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ notice in writing.
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LS WITH HIGHEST

TS

the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
006: all) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other three (2006: one) individuals are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

10. BEHFAL

hE&REHFALTH BB (CETRE : 2 /E
T REZMENMFORE - Htt=% (ZFTX

Fr—R)ENALZHMESERET -

2007 2006

—EELEHF —EETREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®EF T

Salaries and other emoluments e & H th 7 B 1,595 13
Retirement scheme contributions RARAE AT B 5k — 3
1,595 16

For the year ended 31 December, the emoluments of the
three (2006: one) individuals with the highest emoluments
are within the following bands:

HE+_A=T—HLFE =2 (CZEZT-F: —
) EEFEMNALZEEN A THE :

2007 2006
—EELF —TEREF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AZ
RMB Nil to RMB970,000 (equivalent AREZTE AR
to approximately HK$Nil 970,0007T (FHER 4
to HK$1,000,000) T3 T 2 1,000,000/ 7T) 3 1
11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11. XAREZRREMLERE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders KA RSB EEGRE CBEERA

of the Company includes a loss of approximately
RMB10,013,000 (2006: RMB6,850,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

RAVBRREEZEBEENARYK
10,013,000 (ZZEEXRF : AR

6,850,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

12. LOSS PER SHARE

a)

b)

12. BREE

Basic loss per share a) SRERERE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on FREAREE TR QT T
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders RIE(HEELH AR 2,500,0007T
of the Company of approximately RMB2,500,000 TTRF  AR¥6,591,00070) & F
(2006: RMB6,591,000) and the weighted average NBE BITETERKRNEFEHH
of 514,728,000 (2006: 473,000,000) ordinary 514,728,000/ (== Z X
shares in issue during the year, calculated as 473,000,0008%) 5T & » HFr&E@T : _a
follows:
2007 2006
—EELF —ZEERX
000 ’000
T T A%
Issued ordinary shares R—HAH—B2
at 1 January BT 473,000 473,000
Effect of issue of shares FERR MO ELEET
by share placement fRin 2 %2 41,728 —
Weighted average number R+ZRA=+—Hx
of ordinary shares T AR N 19 &
at 31 December 514,728 473,000
Diluted loss per share b) SREBEESE

No diluted loss per share was shown for the year
ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding
during both years.

HREBE_ZTLFRZTTF+
A=+ RIEFEHBEETZER
A& 0 B S ) BN 2 51 R (A
FEZ2EREBEESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZT+F+_A=+—BLEFEUAARKIIE) =

13. 72|

ation is presented in respect of the Group’s PEEREAEE 2 EBDHEY] - HRAR
s segments. As all of the Group’s revenue and SEzWERFEERNTHIRE AR - AL
s were substantially derived from the PRC, no 27| E D EBE R

graphical segment information is presented.

Business segments KD

The Group has the following major business segments: REBzFEXBH IR -

Software . Development of sales of B . EHBIFABEREEES
software relating to securities REmERR 28
and financial industries in the
PRC

Hardware . Sales of hardware T L HEEM

Maintenance and . Provision of repairs and #1e D ARFPRESEREE

other services maintenance and other N H A Bl 75 VA B H At 151l <2 1% AR 7%

technical support services
for customers

Liquefied coalbed gas : Manufacture and sales of BALEE R L EERBEEREEER

liquefied coalbed gas
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continuea) 13. 32
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by business AEEREBHHE D 2
segments is as follows: S &
Maintenance and Liquefied
Software Hardware other services coalbed gas Gonsolidated total
Eif it EERENRE REEER @t
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERtE CEE5F CEBtE CST5F CEEtE C5T5F CEEtE C5T5F ZEEtE 3%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMREE 2 s 29810 16387 5899 764 13730 862 - — 49399 5773
Other revenue Efpa 550 2815 - = - = - - 581 2805
Total st 35,331 19,202 5,859 764 13,730 8,622 - — 54926 28588
Segment results R 516 3771 (179) 29 4641 84% (154 (673 8701 11583
Unallocated operating income &K EE
and expenses WARSH (5994)  (18201)
Finance coss BERD (1,742 =
Profitloss) before income tax R ETERATER]/ (B%) %5 (6,618
Income fax FiER (3,465) 2
Loss for the year REEEE (25000 (6,591)
Depreciation nE 615 830 140 39 566 442 24 - 1,345 1311
Unallocated depreciation FARNE 25 45
1,510 1,3%
Amortisation B 5,526 5914 2 3 121 29 - - 5,649 5,946
Impairment loss on intangible assets & AEHEEE - 250 - = - = - = - 25
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - B
plant and equipment T 1 2 - = - = - = 1 2
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEME A BB B 507 = - = - = - = 597 =
Write off of trade and other ElE R
receivables ElsEE 167 = 2 = - = - — 169 -
Write back of impaiment losson BB SAE
iradle receivables FENE (25) (557) - - - - - = (25 (557)

THERHEREEEARAR — TR LFER
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s is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZT+F+_A=+—BLEFEUAARKIIE)

NG (continuea) 13. FEHEHR @
e Group’s assets and liabilities by business AEBREBHHE D 2 EERBES TN
T
Maintenance and Liquefied
Software Hardware other services coalhed gas Consolidated total
g# Bt SEEREMBEK RRER @it

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZRRLE CEIAF CRRE CEENE CRRLE CTENF CRRLE CITNF CRRE 3T
RMB'000  RMB'OD  RMB'000 RMB'0O0  RMB'000 RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00
ARRTR ARETTL ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETL ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETI

Segment assets AHEE 41,761 22,080 1,897 214 17,778 133 67,585 5979 135,021 28 466
Unallocated assets AIREE 27628 2863
Total assets BEg 162649 57,100
Segment liabilities PHak 13,444 6,061 2,704 38 8,143 1,616 19,859 990 44,150 8,705
Unallocated liabilties AIHER 11840 6,067
Total liabities BER 55,990 14772
Capital expenditure BRRR 558 10,749 1,961 = 2,45 285 15,630 — | 20,39 11,034
Unallocated capital expendiure KRR AARR 3022 549

846 11583
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

e
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - WBERZE
a) The Group a) rEE
Buildings Furniture
held for Leasehold Computer and Motor Construction
ownuse  improvements equipment equipment vehicles in progress
BEERZET HERBIE ElRE RERRE RE EEIR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Cost RE
At 1 January 2006 RZZTNE
-A-AH 1,673 957 2,064 684 8%4 — 6,272
Additions RE — — 741 108 330 — 1,179
Disposals HE = (38) (275) (62) (435) = (810)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (41) - - - (41)
Exchange adjustments ELAE — — (2) (4) — — (6)
At31 December 2006and ~ R=ET/ %
1 January 2007 +-A=t+-A
R-EELE
-A—-H 1,673 919 2,487 726 789 — 6,594
Additions RE 3,632 1,960 761 1,482 2,287 11,130 21,252
Disposals e = (680) (225) (93) — — (998)
Reclassification EFibE - 38 (38) — - - -
Exchange adjustments ELAE — — 3) (7) — — (10
At 31 December 2007 i id
+-A=1-H 5,305 2,237 2,982 2,108 3,076 11,130 26,338
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 January 2006 RZZTNE
-A-AH 124 194 1,047 399 351 — 2,115
Charge for the year REEXM 82 397 622 139 116 - 1,356
Written back on disposals L ERE = = (299) (52) (224) = (575)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - %) — - - (7)
Exchange adjustments ELAE — — (1) (4) — — (5)
At31 December 2006and ~ RMZEER
1 January 2007 +-F=t+-H
RZERLE
-A-AH 206 591 1,362 482 243 — 2,384
Charge for the year REE M 278 297 539 179 277 - 1570
Written back on disposals ~ HE& - (680) @217 (78) - - (975)
Exchange adjustments ELAE - - (4) (4) - - (8)
At 31 December 2007 RZE5+E
+-B=t+-H 434 208 1,680 579 520 — 3471
Net hook value REFE
At 31 December 2007 RZETLE
+-A=+-H 4,821 2,029 1,302 1,529 2,556 11,130 23,367
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE
+-A=+-H 1,467 328 1,125 244 546 — 3,710

The buildings held for own use are held under medium
term lease of 40 to 50 years situated in the PRC.

At 31 December 2007, the net book value of buildings
pledged for the Group’s bank facilities was approximately
RMB4,799,000 (2006: Nil).

FIFERZET O +E0 +FhHHEY
A URPE -

AZETHF+A=+—H  xEEER
NEBRITEEZBFTHREAFENRARYE
4,799,000 (ZEZXRF : T) ©

TEBBRREEEERAT —ETLFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

_ NT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - WERRKRE @

The Company h) PN/
Furniture
Leasehold Computer and Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE#£EIRE ElZE BREARRE AE @
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETE ARET:x
Cost RE
At 1 January 2006 RZETRF
AR - 42 104 = 146
Additions NE — 35 12 330 377
Exchange adjustments fE R — ) (4) — (6)
At 31 December 2006 RZBERF
1 January 2007 +-A=+—-H
RZTET+EF
—H—H — 75 112 330 517
Additions B 81 23 — 1,332 1,436
Exchange adjustments R — ) @) — 9)
At 31 December 2007 RZZEELF
+-A=+—H 81 96 105 1,662 1,944
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
At 1 January 2006 KT F
—H—H — 31 63 — 94
Charge for the year AEETH - 8 21 16 45
Exchange adjustments B 5 % — (1) ?3) — (4)
At 31 December 2006 RZETRF
and 1 January 2007 +-A=+-H
LZZTTLF
—H—H — 38 81 16 135
Charge for the year AEETH 7 14 21 178 220
Exchange adjustments B 5 % — (5) (4) — 9)
At 31 December 2007 RZET+F
+=-A=t-8 7 47 9% 194 346
Net hook value REFE
At 31 December 2007 RZZEELF
+-A=+—H 74 49 7 1,468 1,598
At 31 December 2006 RZETRF
+-A=+—H — 37 31 314 382
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15.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND 15.
UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The net book value of the Group’s prepaid lease payments AEBEFEBEHTES L HES 2 BT —"
for land under operating leases is analysed as follows: AT

The Group
rEH
2007 2006 -
—EBLF T =
RMB’000 RMB’000 g
AR T ARE Tt
Net book value at 1 January R—A—BZEmFEE 1,655 1,742
Additions NE 2,164 —
3,819 1,742
Amortisation for the year R E Y (134) (87)
Net book value at 31 December Rt A=+—HBZz2EmE%E 3,685 1,655
Less: current portion B BIEAER (D (143) (87)
Non-current portion JEBNER =L (D 3,542 1,568
The prepaid lease payments for land under operating KERYTZ2AMNLES RN +ER+
leases are held under medium term lease of 40 to 50 years FZzHHABLOEE  URFE - R=ZFZT+
and situated in the PRC. At 31 December 2007, the cost F+_A=1+—H KEFBEHT2EMNLH
of the prepaid lease payments for land under operating e kA A ARE4L 045000 (ZZZ R
leases is RMB4,045,000 (2006: RMB1,881,000). F : AR¥1,881,0007T) °
The amortisation charge for the year is included in the AEFEET NN BRR ZITHRRAXY
administrative expenses of the consolidated income R o
statement.

rEREREEEsRAT —Teresn 99



For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

16. B EE

AEE

Software
development

costs
BB B R AN
RMB’000
AR®EFTT
Cost RE
At 1 January 2006 R-_ZTEZF—HF—H 18,665
Additions (note 7a) #E (ffst7a) 10,404
At 31 December 2006, R-_ZEZEXF+_HA=+—H
1 January 2007 and —EELF-—A—HBRK
31 December 2007 —EE+HF+-H=+—H 29,069
Accumulated amortisation Rt BERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2006 RZZEEF—H—AH 8,068
Amortisation for the year NS 5,859
Impairment loss BEEE 2,517
16,444
At 31 December 2006 and RZBEZERF+_A=+—H8K
1 January 2007 —2F+F—H—H
Amortisation for the year NS 5,515
At 31 December 2007 R-_ZEZ+F+_-_HA=+—H 21,959
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2007 R-_ZEZE+HF+-_A=+—H 7,110
At 31 December 2006 R-_ZEERF+_A=+—H 12,625
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17.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-T

16.

ZLET_A=+—BLFE UARKZIE)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group (Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over their useful lives with
the period of not exceeding five years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
management of the Group re-assessed the recoverable
amounts of the intangible assets. The recoverable amounts
are based on certain key assumptions. The value-in-use
calculations use cash flow projection based on the financial
budgets approved by the management covering a 5-year
period, and a discount rate of 15% per annum. The cash
flow projection during the budget period for the intangible
assets is based on the expected gross margins during the
budget period. Expected gross margins have been
determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for future market development.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of
approximately RMB34,600,000 (2006: Nil) as deposits for
the acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment,
which comprise of two sets of plant and machinery for two
production plants for manufacture of liquefied coalbed gas
in Shanxi Province.

16.

17.

BILEE ®)

BEEBENTNBERF Z A ERAFHA
NEBEERRBMAX °

AERBHET HREABRERHEEXART
BE o
BE_ZZLF+A=+—HIEFE " K

SECEREABBHTEETLEE 2K
B 50EE Al E R B DRI T RA SR R R AT
B -EREEMENIREEEEASRA
FHRAIAE 2 M BRREIAR FRERE15%
RARSRETRA - RBEHRETHEH
BEENRSRERD - DREAEEHE
ZEHBBRENMETT - BAERENER
BRAERAREEBABHARRMGRRZ
BHMETE -

WiEM - HBERRE 2T

REF » REBAZ N AR 34,600,000
T(ZBTRF - B) MEREBE T -
HEREREZTE - EPEELUEEMER
LB R E TR M AR RS KR ik o
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 ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
EQUIPMENT (continued)

is expected that the Group will invest approximately
B220,000,000 to pursue the liquefied coalbed gas
business and the directors of the Company expects that
the production plants will start commercial production in
late 2008.

Capital commitments of the Group contracted for in respect
of the remaining unpaid balances of approximately
RMB122,710,000 (2006: Nil) for above acquisition are
disclosed in note 36(a) to the financial statements.

18. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF INTERESTS
IN LAND UNDER OPERATING LEASES

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of
approximately RMB11,549,000 (2006:Nil) as deposits for
the acquisition of interests in a two pieces of land in Shanxi
Province held for own use under operating leases.

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

17.

18.

19.

WEEE  BBERRBZT

(%)

RE B FEEH R E 49 A R #220,000,0007T A
RERBICREBREY  ARBERRBLE
EIBMER _ZTZENFTEFRABEL
EE o

Et R A R ER A S AR 122,710,000
TT(ZETRF  8)  AKREBREFACH
HIH) B AESE R I 15 R R Y FE36(a) H IR -

gﬁ@%ﬁ%TiMEEZH

AEE AEBECDAAINOARK
11,549,0007T (Z TR « £) (ERWEE WL
PEMR TR RS R RIEE
BHOBEEER -

RBRRZRE

The Company

¥ NN
2007 2006
—EELEF ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®T T
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - BRE 67,992 6,018
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
tEFETZA=ZT—HIEFE UARKSIE)

e

19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

At as 31 December 2007, the details of the subsidiaries

19.

R-FTt&E+-A=+—8

are as follows: FEIBIE ¢
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERLA
Particulars of issued
and paid up share/ Group’s
Place of registered effective
incorporation/ capital interest Principal activities/place of

Name of subsidiary establishment BRORMARE/ F58 Direct Indirect ~operation

WEARER EMAL/ RueS%  EREAFE ERER EE E3 TEEY/EEDY

Shine Science & Technology (BVI) British Virgin Islands 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% — Investment holding/Hong Kong
Company Limited (“BVI") of US$0.01 each REBR/BE

REEAEE 100,0008% &%
([RERZES]) AB00IETZ LR
Inboom Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% — Not yet commenced business/
RERTHES US$1.00 each Hong Kong
1R &R LERRER/ B8
HELOETZ EBR

Fujian Shine Science & Technology PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Development of computer
Limited # RMB12,500,000 software, resale of hardware,

BEMENRBRAA A AR provision of system

AE#12,500,0007 integration and maintenance/
PRC
REBMEN BERHR
RURZGERREERE/TE

Shanghai Shine Science & Technology ~ PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Development of computer
Limited (note (a)) o RMB5,000,000 software, resale of hardware,

LEHERREERAR (3 () HEA provision of system

ARH5,000,0007 integration and maintenance/
PRC
REEHEAML  BERHR
RUZGERREERE/+E

Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Resale of hardware and
Company Limited (note (b)) H RMB1,000,000 network installation/PRC

RN EFTREERAR (3 (b) HHER BERHRENREZE /PE

AE%1,000,0007

Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Shunai PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% — Manufacture and sales of
Energy Development Company HE HK$30,000,000 liquefied coalbed gas/PRC
Limited (note (c)) FHER BICEEREERSE /HE

LAEGHERERERERAR 30,000,000% 7T

(Fit3E (c))

Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% — Manufacture and sales of
Development Company Limited HE HK$40,000,000 liquefied coalbed gas/PRC
(note (d)) FMER RIEBREERBE/FE

WEDKIBRERERERAR 40,000,000

(BEE (o)

TEBBRREEEERAT —ETLFFER
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(c)

(d)

IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Shanghai Shine Science is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC. The Group nominated
Ms. Gu Yun ("Ms. Gu"), the ex-chairman of the Company
to hold the 10% equity interest in trust for and on behalf
of the Group.

Xinwangluo is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC. The Group nominated Ms. Gu to
hold the 33% equity interest in trust for and on behalf of
the Group.

Yangcheng Energy is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC. The registered capital of
Yangcheng Energy was HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB38,800,000) of which
HK$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB29,100,000) was paid up by the Group as at 31
December 2007.

Qinshui Energy is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC. The registered capital of Qinshui
Energy was HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB38,800,000) which was fully paid up by the Group
as at 31 December 2007.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

19. RBABZRE ©#

B & -

(a) EEFERRPBKIZIERE - K
SEREARRANEFERELL ([BE
T REFETARKRAEBIFEE10%E

..
i e

(b)  HEMBEKASNPBERLZEZINIERE
H o AEBRZELLTAEFETARRAK
S EF B E33% %A ©

(c) B EER AN P BRI 2 2INERE - 5
Ik BEIIR 2 FE & 7R £340,000,00078 7T (155
I AR #38,800,0007T) + HA - AEE

R-_EBEELtHE+-_F=+—HEHN

30,000,000 T (HERNH AR

29,100,0007T) °

(d) WIKBEIR R BRI 2 2INERE < b
IKBEIR 2 7E & 78 £340,000,000/% 7T (1%
A AR #38,800,0007T) + EBRAEER
—EEE+_A=+—H&AR -

20. TRADING SECURITIES 20. EF5¥ =
The Group
REE
2007 2006
—EBELE —TTREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Listed securities EhEE
— Listed equity securities in — BB Z ETRARES
Hong Kong 3,488 1,009
— Listed equity securities in — Bz ETRARES
the PRC 825 —
4,313 1,009
Unlisted debt securities FLETEEHES
— Unlisted investment funds in —HEZELETRERES
the PRC — 1,983
4313 2,992
Market value of listed securities FhEEZTE 4,313 1,009
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

21. INVENTORIES

2007

—EELHE =
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Computer hardware and BISTEG RIEESEmE A Z R4
accessories acquired for resale 769 120

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. JEURBR R R E At FE WK IE

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE 2T RF ZBELEFE —TERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥ETT AR%BTR ARKETT
Amounts due from subsidiaries B IEENCIVSE
(note (a)) B (fzE(a)) — — 16,609 19,138
Trade receivables (note(d)) JrE U BR 3% (Fft 5 (d)) 8,272 4,280 — —
Rental and other deposits HekREMIZS 433 111 — —
Advances to suppliers BT MR 2 FIR — 498 — —
Prepayments and TETRIE R
other receivables H fth & W kI8 4,885 7,440 2,773 868
Amounts due from securities broker BB F AL 42 1T
firms (note (b)) FE (K 5E(b)) 6,871 6,646 — —
Others HAith 3,712 1,220 663 324
24,173 20,195 20,045 20,330
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(c)

(d)

ER RECEIVABLES

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the year, the Group traded equity and debt
securities through securities broker firms. As at 31
December 2007, amount of approximately
RMB6,871,000 (2006: RMB6,646,000) was due from
securities broker firms. The amounts are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 2.5%. (2006: 2.5%) per annum and
can be withdrawn by the Group at any time.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from rental
and other deposits, are expected to be recovered within

one year.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

BE

22,

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
tEFETZA=ZT—HIEFE URARKSIE)

— ==

PR BR R R E At U FR IR ()

=
m

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

R B A FRB R ML - B E
RS -

REE  AEEBERESKLLTEERAR
kEHES R-BELF+-A=+—
B BRBZFELETZRBENBARK
6,871,000 (ZZTZEARF : ARK
6,646,0007T) ° ZEFAREER - LF
S25E (ZTTREF : 25B) FHRAAR
SEBERRER -

BRile REMRSIN - REIRE BURERR
R E A e M IR A 7 — SE AU o

FEM BRI 2 BRI D AT AR T

The Group
REH
2007 2006
—ETLF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
Within 1 month 1@ A A 3,052 —
More than 1 month but 1@ A& B3 A A
less than 3 months 3,087 2,279
More than 3 months but 3EABEMEARN
less than 6 months 2,079 2,001
More than 6 months but 6fE A& E12ER A
less than 12 months 336 1,179
More than 12 months 1218 A& 4,401 2,932
12,955 8,391
Less: Impairment loss on B R R 2 R EE 1R
trade receivables (4,683) (4,111)
8,272 4,280
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
tEFETZA=ZT—HIEFE UARKSIE)

HE-%T%

— ==

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(Continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to
180 days to its customers. The Group may, on a case by
case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and credit worthiness, extend the credit
period upon customers’ request.

The movement of impairment loss on trade receivables

s : (48)
(d) (&)
REF R4 TFEE0Z180H ZEH

AEB A RS EEREE  RRFHES
MEREER  BREFPEREREEH -

(e) EUSRFUREBEBEZZESHWT :

is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—ETtHE —ZTTX
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFTT
At 1 January w—HA—H 4,111 4,668
Write back of impairment loss on  4F A ## @
trade receivables during the year  JEWBRZUREE 1B (25) (557)
Impairment loss on trade FRER 2 FEY
receivables recognised BRFUREEE
during the year 597 —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 4,683 4,111

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

f  RBERKER

18 Bl Kz £ B 15 52 5 7R ok B Y JE Uk BR 3R 2 BR R
DR

The Group
KEE
2007 2006
—EELE —EEREFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired REE R AR RE 8,272 4,280

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. No receivables that were past
due but not impaired as at 31 December 2007 and 2006
since impairment loss on receivables will be provided for
those receivables were past due.

REBERBENEBEERSRREZES
ZERPRAHEERTEE - BRAR A
#3755 B B B FE WK IE B P M RIE R E
B RIEELFR_FEF+A=T
— B30 B BB RO B /Y FE RGRIE -

Fl

TEBBRREEEERAT —ETLFFER
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24.

25.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE_ZTTLF+-A=1+—HLEFE UAARKEZIE)
23. AU [E R IE
The Group
REE
2007 2006
—EEEHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ETTT
Value added tax refunds receivable & I (B iR 54 1,312 794
FIXED BANK DEPOSITS 24. SRITEHER
Fixed bank deposits of approximately RMB6,624,000 RARIRITE TR A A AREEE,624,0007T
(2006: Nil) carry at prevailing market interest rates with (Z2ZTRE D) c REFHIEBITMSH
maturity over three months from 31 December 2007. The K BWR T F+ A =+—HiEs
management of the Group considers that the carrying —@A%KRE - AEEEEERBZTAN
amount of deposits approximates their fair value. EHEHEEAFERES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERBEESEEY
The Group The Company
AEE b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —ZTEIRF ZEELE —ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
Deposits with bank RITER 540 — — —
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFRES 44,607 15,009 5,496 1,373
Cash and cash equivalents in BEBER
the balance sheets FRREe &
HeZEEY 45,147 15,009 5,496 1,373
Less: Bank overdrafts W IRITIEY — —
Cash and cash equivalents in meEReRER
the consolidated FHEE R
cash flow statement BeZEEY 45,147 15,009

108

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited Annual Report 2007




For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27.

26. M{YEERR R LA S

TheGroup ~ The Company
REE
2007 2006 2007
—ETtLE —TTRF —EELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETT AR%ETE
Trade payables FEFBR R 130 26 —
Amounts due to directors BN EE KA
(note (a)) (M= (a)) 20,080 1,549 13,080
Deposits received from customers BEISNE) S 17,846 6,111 — —
Employees welfare payable FEfT B TEH 760 609 — —
Accrued expenses and FEETR S &
other payables E fth e 5k08 4,194 3,997 1,922 4,140
Other tax payables Hh FE BT IR 773 353 — 3
43,783 12,645 15,002 4,143
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: FERBRRZRRAITAT ¢
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EZTLHF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
More than 1 month but 18 A& B3@A R
less than 3 months 130 26
Note: MIEE -
(a) The amounts are unsecured repayable on demand and (a) ZEFBERERT RERKEEREE
interest-free except the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong R FEAT E B %k A 2 AR % 18,859,0007T
Sheng of RMB18,859,000 (2006: Nil) which is interest- (ZEERF  B) HERIRFEI0EFE
bearing 10% per annum. G o
DEFERRED INCOME 27. EEWA
The Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
At 1 January R—HA—H 1,616 1,546
Released to the consolidated ERELRAEBEA
income statement (1,616) (1,546)
Income deferred during the year F IR E YA 1,750 1,616
At 31 December n+t=-—A=+—8H 1,750 1,616

rEwzpeemsras —ssre2x 109




For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE-2TLET-AST—BILESE GAARESIE)
MITEX
mber 2007, the bank loans are repayable as RZZEZELF+ZA=+—0 ' EEENR
TEFRWAT
The Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELEHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Secured bank loans AEEFEAE
repayable: RITEN
Within 1 year or on demand 1F Nk AR
ZRER 7,960 =
After 1 year but within 2 years 1518 B2F K — =
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F % {B5F N — —
Total secured bank loans BEARIT
BERasE 7,960 —
Less: Amount due within 1 year B ORBEET—FA
shown under current liabilities EHA 7 FE (7,960) —
Amount due after 1 year ERBEET —F
shown under non-current liabilities 8 2| 83 2 Ft3& — —
Note: BIEE -
(a) Bank loans bear interest at floating interest rates ranging (a) RITERIREF6.63EE7.13E 2 ZEF
from 6.63 to 7.13% per annum. BErE e
(b) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the (b) EERABRITERZREEBEREEL R FEMR

bank borrowings approximate to their fair value.

A+

Eo
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

29. TAX PAYABLE

29.

2007

—zBts —ETAE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AREFIT

PRC enterprise income tax PR EMET =
At 1 January Rn—A—H 70 997
Provision for the year PN 2,115 338
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETT 938 31
PRC enterprise income tax FREANPRECEREH
paid during the year (1,479) (1,296)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 1,644 70
30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EHEFIE

The major components of the deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) provided for at the balance sheet date and for
the year then ended are as follows:

REEBRBEERIFECEHBBZR
EHBREE/ (AE) 2TEHHMAT

Deferred tax assets BEEREBEEE
The Group
r5H
Impairment loss
Software on trade and Impairment loss
Tax losses development costs other receivables on intangible assets Total
BUWRHRHE
HEBE BARRAA KRR ERE BN EENERR #zt
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
SERLE CRERE CBRLE CTINE CERLE CTEE CBERLE CTRE DBBtE _IT0E
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OC0  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At the beginning of the year 4] 380 — - — 431 630 251 — 1,074 630
Charged/(credited) to REEEER
consolidated i/
income statement (%) (380) 380 — — (437) (193) (257) 257 (1,074) 444
At the end of the year FX - 380 - = - 437 - 257 - 1,074
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

ION (continued)

30. EEHIE @

EERESE
The Group
S ]
Impairment loss
Software on trade and Impairment loss
Tax losses development costs other receivables on intangible assets Total
BB R 1E
HEFE BHBEAL WHERERE BVEENERE @
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE ZETAF CZEBtE CTTNEF CEEHE -TTF CBEtE -TEAE CBELE CTTNE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT AR%TR ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETn ARET:
At the beginning of the year ~ £4] - = (1,515) (1,467) - = - — (1,515) (1,467)
Charged/(credited) to REABER
consolidated it/
income statement (£%) - = 662 (48) - = - = 662 (48)
At the end of the year FX - — (853) (1,515) - — - — (853) (1,515)

The Group has unused tax losses of RMB2,263,000 (2006:
RMB5,261,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax assets in respect of these unused tax losses
have been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
taxable profit streams. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation.

REB 2 REARIEEEAAREK2,263,000
T (ZEERF - AR¥5,261,0005T) + 7] A
VEH SRR F o F A A TE AR R FE R AL
w2 IR - BB ZEARARIBEERE

RELEFIBEE - BERITBE - ZEM
BEBILARER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

31. SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorised and issued capital

31. B

a) EEREBRITRAE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAT
2007 2006
“EELE ZETRF
Number Number of
of shares Amount shares Amount
ROYE $W  ROHE +% "‘E
'000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000 .
TR AR%Txn T ARETR
Authorised — Ordinary shares of EE—FR
HK$0.01 (approximately equivalent — HE1{E0.017& 7T
to RMB0.0106) each: (HEER
AR #¥0.01067T)
ZERk
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HRK
+=-—A=+—H 5,000,000 53,000 5,000,000 53,000
Issued and fully paid — Ordinary BEITRAR 8K
shares of HK$0.01 (approximately H{E0.01%8 T
equivalent to RMB0.0106) each: (BEER
AR#0.01067T)
ZEBR
At 1 January R—A—H 473,000 5,014 473,000 5,104
Issue of new shares BT 94,600 908 = =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 567,600 5,922 473,000 5,014

On the July 2007, the Company allotted and issued
94,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by way of
share placement at HK$0.77 per share for cash.

R-ZZLFLA - ARAEBAER0.77
ABLZBRNEEARBAES 2T - BER
#%1794,600,000f HF X EE0.0LETL 2 & i
Betn e
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

31. BAE @

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year. The capital
structure of the Group consists of (i) debts,
comprising trade and other payables, deferred
income and bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents; and ii) equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The details of the net debt to equity ratio of the
Group is as follow:

h) BEXEH

AREEREENARREEEBERELE
WEBBCEBRERILE - BEREESRAD
W o AEEERBREEFRE B - AEEH
BARGHEANTHEBEKRNAE - BREMNER
REMBEMFIR EEWRARBITEFRERES
EB2EEY  RDANRBRERH ARIGE
@ BREHTEA  HEREEGH -

AEEFABEEERLERZFENAT :

Notes 2007 2006
M et —EELF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Current liabilities BNEAE &
Trade and other payables FETBRFR K
H fth P& < 5RI8 26 43,783 12,645
Deferred income JEE U A 27 1,750 1,616
Bank borrowings HRITE 28 7,960 —
Total debt FE=R 53,493 14,261
Less: Cash and B BRER
cash equivalents BEEEY 25 (45,147) (15,009)
Net debt FaE 8,346 N/AZ i F
Total equity B 106,659 42,328
Total capital FEEZWIN 115,005 42,328
Net debt to equity ratio F A EEERE 7.26% N/A i FB
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
=—T=T

tFE+ZA=+—BLEFEURAARKIE

32. RESERVES

a)

32. f#&

The Group a) E
Attrihutable to equity shareholders of the Company
FATRRRRES
Common
General welfare Retained
Merger reserve reserve Share profits/
Teserve (note (i) (note (if) option (Accumulated Minority
Share (note () - DLER reserve  Translation losses) interests
premiom  EHEE B R BRE resee  RERFH/ Tl DHRR Total
ReEE @) (G (G B BERE  (BWER @it B it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETn ARETr ARETz ARETR
At 1 January as ®-A-R
previously reported (RHE2R) 34846 (2,351) 2903 1421 603 97) 6,888 4212 15 44367
Transfer to general 25— REE
resenve (note (i) (GRI) - = 1421 (1421) - - - - - -
At 1 January 2006 RIZERE
asresled -A-REA) U5 RB) 43 - 603 I RT¥ I K )
Exchangedifferenceon  MESEEE
translation of financial BBRRL
statements of EfES
forelgn entities — — — — — (307) — (307) — (307)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - 6,591) (6,591) = (6,591)
Profit appropriations B E - - 106 - - - (106) - - -
Total recognised income ~~ AEEER
and expenses WARR
for the year &g = — 106 - - (307) (6,697) (6,898) - (6,39)
Forfeiture of employee BRMZ
share options EEERE - - - - (603) - 603 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENEAE = = - - - - - - (155) (155)
At31 December 2006 H-FS/E
and 1 January 2007 tZA=t+-A
R-55tF
-A-R 34,845 (2,351) 4430 — — (404) 794 37314 — 37314
Exchange differenceon ~ £E5\EEE
translation of financial BBRRL
statements of EfES
foreign entities — - - - — (67) = (67) = (67)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - — - - (2,500) (2,500) - (2,500
Profit appropriations et — - 921 - — - (921) - - -
Total recognised income. ~ REERR
and expenses WARR
for the year g = - 921 - - (67) (3421) (2,567) - (2,567)
Issue of new shares BHR 65990 = = = = = = 65990 = 65,990
At31 December 2007 HZ-FS+tE
TZAZ+-HB 10083 (2,351) 5351 — - (471) (2627) 100,737 — 100,737
Note: BIEE -
(i) Merger reserve (i) &

The merger reserve represents the amount

of reserves of subsidiaries that have been

R

capitalised as a result of the merger.

EHFEEENBERAREAHMETELRZ

THERHEREEEARAR — TR LFER
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ontinued)

e Group (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

General reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to appropriate at least 10% of after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year’s losses), based on the PRC
statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted
accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and financial
regulations applicable to the PRC enterprises, to
a general reserve until the balance of the fund
reaches 50% of the PRC subsidiary’s registered
capital. Thereafter, any further appropriation can
be made at the directors’ discretion.

The general reserve can be utilised to offset the
prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the
capital on the condition that the general reserve
fund shall be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the registered capital after such increase.

Common welfare reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the articles of
association of all the subsidiaries in PRC, each
of the subsidiaries is required to appropriate 5%
to 10% of their statutory profit after tax under
PRC GAAP after offsetting prior years’ losses to
common welfare reserve. Such fund can be used
for collective employees benefits, but cannot be
used to pay for employees welfare expenses.
However, according to the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC announcement number 67 on the 15
March 2006, pursuant to the Section 167 of the
Company Law of PRC, the reserve previously
allocated to common welfare reserve will be
deemed to be transferred to the general reserve
on 1 January 2006. Upon the announcement, no
subsequent profit distribution of the common
welfare reserve was needed.

HE-%T2

—==

32. f#E @

a)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

tFE+ZA=+—BLEFEURAARKIE

&M (E)

B 5 -

(ii)

(iii)

(&)
— R

REBEDEAMERRER - &F
S A RRE S EFEEEE - A
FARBRAREHERN (RS
FHERND) R BB R 2 R
DIRELZ T BUEE M ISR B R
BB RE&D10% - (ER— R
B EEES 2 HEEDT BB
RA)ZFEMEARL0% H1E o Bik
T =T B BIRE 1 R (AR

=+
oo

—RFEETBEEHEBEFERS
B RBEENEAR - EEINEAR
% —REEAEF T OREMRE
K25% °

el

RIBERETEED SRR KD B
BB ARZ ARAMEIZAA -
EMBARRNEBIHEBEFERBR
& - AR REP B AR SRR
8 2R ERRTRAR M M 5% E 10%
ERHERIFHE - ZEES AR
BTRBERN  ETAREXNE
TRAF - Al - REHBEBER
BR-ZZTZARNF=ATHBHEMZ
FETHRAE - KBPBRAFES
16716 » ZRID 2 R HKEAI A
ZREERBERBENR - TTRF—
H—AEBA—RE#E - EILRE
MR - TEFERER 2R
DR R BER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. RE@

b) The Company h)
Share
Share Translation Accumulated option
premium reserve losses reserve To ‘
KRG EE EifRE R EE BRERE FREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBO0O

ARMTE  ARMTI  ARMTT  ARMTIE  ARETR -%

At 1 January 2006 RZZZRE
—A—A 34,845 (651) (8,519) 603 26,278

Forfeiture of employee K EEERE
share options — — 603 (603) =

Exchange differenceson  BEHKHRR

translation of financial REBREEZ

statement to presentation ~ EXZHE

currency — (482) = = (482)
Loss for the year FRESR — — (6,850) — (6,850)

At 31 December 2006 R-EZRE

and 1 January 2007 +=A=t-BkK
“TT+&-f-H 34,845 (1,133) (14,766) — 18,946
Issue of new shares Bk 65,990 — — — 65,990

Exchange differenceson  BEH KRR

translation of financial RERE®Z

statement to presentation  EXE®E

currency — (716) = = (716)
Loss for the year FREE — (10,013) — (10,013)

At 31 December 2007 i 3
+-A=t-H 100,835 (1,849) (24,779) — 74,207
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR MY AL

32. RESERVES (continued)

h) The Company (Continued)

Notes:

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium is distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of share
premium if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

account.

At 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders was approximately RMB74,207,000 (2006:
RMB18,946,000) computing in accordance with the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s articles of association. This includes the
Company’s share premium of approximately
RMB100,835,000 (2006: RMB34,845,000) less
translation reserve and accumulated losses of
approximately RMB1,849,000 (2006: RMB1,133,000)
and RMB24,779,000 (2006: RMB14,766,000), which is
available for distribution provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed, the
Company will be able to pay off its debts as they fall due

in the ordinary course of business.

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 July 2003
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contributions to the Group. The Scheme
will expire on 27 July 2013. Under the Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any person who is a director
or employee (whether full-time or part-time) of the Group
or any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest,
or any classes of supplier, customer, consultant, adviser,
manager or officer of the Group or any entity in which the

Group holds any equity interest.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE_ZTTLF+-A=1+—HLEFE UAARKEZIE)
32. @ @
b AAR(#E)
PREE -

RIEFESFERREBATA) - Bipx(E
AR T ARER - M (DR 23 RS s HL AR R
BREEEIMEE  HNEENZBREE
AmMAIREREREBHTRAKR AR -
AR R R AF B R SOR A E AT A B 37 AR
1735 8 AR F B AE AT DR ©

REEZHF+-A=+—H ' RAAFTA
EAORTERRZFBBRABEOARE
74,207,000 (ZZEZTRF : AR
18,946,0007T) * IR BH S HS R RDE
(BFTAR) RAR B Z A RABBERMARE
B E2PEEARABRMEENARE
100,835,000 (ZZEZRE : ARK
34,845,0007T) IR E #E R RETERAA
R¥1,849,000L (ZEZRF : ARK
1,133,0007T) & A R #524,779,000 (=T ZE
N AR¥14,766,000) - fin B2 EEE K
B BEE - NRARMEMERENA
BEBPIH 2 ER - QI EFREAED
i e

33. IBRHERTE

ARRmz s 8l ([t 8)) RRER =
EZ=FLA-T\BBBIRIARRS -
BHERABERALTHAKEMERREM]
B M BRE - ZAt B ERN T —=FtA
—ttEHE® - REZAE - NRABRIFA
SESAANEEFAETABRBEZTANERNE
ZEE (TwmERIRE) - IAKEHA
S ER A ERIREZ E B RH TR M
fEm - BF - dAER - B KEKEE
B BB -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE_ZTALF+_A=+—HIEFEURAREIE)

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed ten per cent. of the total shares of the Company in
issue at the date of listing of the Company. The total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed thirty per cent. of
the total shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible
person in any 12-month period must not exceed one per
cent. of the total shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of the individual limit

must be subject to shareholders’ approval.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration for
the grant. In respect of option holders other than suppliers
and customers, option may be exercised, which shall
commence 1 year from the date on which that option is
granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of (i)
a 10-year period from the date of such grant and (ii) 10
years from 28 July 2003. In respect of option holders who
are suppliers and customers, such period shall commence
on the date of grant and expire 1 year thereafter. The
subscription price is determined by the Board, but shall
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations on the date of grant of that option, which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of that option;
and (c) the nominal value for the time being of each shares
of the Company.

33.

II. lr

Bt ISR M AL

BRESTE @

RIE B R AN A T E B AR AR S BT
B ARG B8 - A ETEER
KRR IHABMEARREARAEBE Y
10% 18 5 5% 5+ B s AN 2 0] Lt 8 AR
SHBIIE I Y B B BT R 4 R 1T (B AR
FERT T T RO B - & ETERE
A FRES B BT BB 2 30% o RIER
1218 B BRI & A E 1A 18 H AR E (B1E
B 17535 1 5K 70 AR JE T RS B 48 R ]
AR BN EE > TEBBAATD
TR BIN1% o (LA — 1 BB EAR
SEHMIE - VA CEEREIE -

BREBREXNERRL ABBA2IRAE
W ERASN1.00B TEARHRE - 5t
HEBREFUIIBRESBEAMS @ B
& A R BB AR M 5 I B ERRE ST — 12 IR 1T
£ BEEA)ZEREBSHETTFA %
(V=TT =F+ A —+/\BEst+F8/H A
REERE)ZHEE—BER - LH BHER
REFPZEREREAMNES @ ZEBRAMESE
MR BER - WHRZBBRRIFER - RE
BHEESET  MTBLIRTI=EHZ
BaE QREBREHEREAR(WERESE
H) E BB AREBRATARARMDZ
WTHE : (bR BEXR L ERER S AEE
¥AWMXMEARERMARARRARMNDZF
HRMHE : RO)ARBKRGE K2 ERE
1B -

TEBERRESERRAR —_ TR LFERH
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

) SCHEME (Continued) 33. BEBRERE @

ments in share options (a) BRESH

Number of options

BRERAE
2007 2006
—geLs —ETX

At 1 January ®—HA—H — 17,930,000
Forfeited, lapsed and RE WL

cancelled during the year EYSE L6 — (17,930,000)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 — —
During years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, REE_ZEZ+FR =TT F+ A=+
no options were exercised or granted. —HIEFE - WETE S DA ERE -
The following table discloses the details of the share TREBERHE-_STELFR_ZTTAF T
options held by directors and employees and “A=+—HIEFERN EZRESMEFE
movements in such holdings during the years RHEZHE ARBEES :

ended 31 December 2007 and 2006:

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding

at
31 December
2006, 1 January

2007 and 31
December 2007
RZZBERE
Outstanding +=ZA=t+-H
1 January CZEELF
2006 Lapsed —-A—-H Exercise
R-BERE during the R-BELE price per
Date of grant —-A—H year tTZ-H=+-H share
RHBEH i RATE RERKH 8 RATHE ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
HK
BT
Directors 55 6 July 2004 1,410,000 (1,410,000) — 0.256
ZZTMFELANHA
Employees BB 6 July 2004 16,520,000 (16,520,000) — 0.256
ZTTMFELANHA

17,930,000 (17,930,000) — —
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the fair

value of services received in return for share options

granted were measured by reference to the fair

value of share options granted. The estimated fair

values of the options granted on 6 July 2004 were
approximately RMB1,089,000. The estimate of the
fair value of the services received was measured

based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model as

follows:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Share price on grant date

Fair value at measurement date

Share price
Exercise price
Expected maximum volatility
(expressed as weighted
average volatility used
in the modeling)
Expected Option life
(expressed as weighted
average life used in the model)
Risk-free rate (based on the
yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Note as at 6 July 2004)

Expected dividend yield

6 July 2004

HK$0.051

HK$0.240
HK$0.256

36%

2.4 years

2.22%

0%

BREZAFERBER

RBE-_ETAFE+-_A=+—HI

AVE  NEERBELRRREY AT

BEmM:TE  R_ZTTNFLANAR
HEREZ BT ATFENAEARE
1,089,000t ° FTER 2 k1% 2 A F
18 - Jh¥#%Black-ScholesHi#E E B
TR WEMAT

BREY AT ERER

REHASZ

R ER —FTTEEFLAXAE
REERZ 0.051% 7T
FE

W 5

% 0.240/8 7T
I1EE 0.25678 7T
TEEA R KK 18
(AKX FETEAZ
MEFREZS])
36%

R AR TE B B

(AR FETEAZ
MEFHFERZS)) 2.4
£  Bag ) 3

(RE—ZZTWNF

+ ANBEBEBINE

EefEr 258

W EMmEE) 2.22%
TEHAAR B & 0%
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34.

SCHEME (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
annualised for one year. The expected life used in
the model had been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The above calculation was based on the assumption
that there was no material difference between the
expected volatility over the whole life of the options
and the historical volatility of the ordinary shares
as set out above.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

33. [ERESTE @

(b) BREZAFERRBR (&)

BHREIRBARBRER —FF
BALZ B LIKIEMmERE o B P A
ZEBFEH  ERBEEEBABRHET
AEE - TERVLRTATEZERE
A=z FBME 2 REBE M T A
o

ERFFETRBATRRMAET : B
PR R FHINTER 2 KR - B bt
ERBRZELRBZEHTEERNE
E o

34. RIRBERFE

AEEERANTERMGHEELE R
8 REBEBABRVMRES T EGHIR LA
HIMERAEEREE ((RESE]) - #ESE
EEBEBIERAETE 2 EREETEKRE
g - RIEBRESE  BXREEBREARS
B R 2 BRWA R BIELS%HK - &=
LR A% AARYA20,000/8TT - RES A
EIHAA A RFREEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
participates in a mandatory central pension scheme
organised by the PRC government for certain of its
employees, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group. Contributions made are based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statement as they
become payable, in accordance with the rules of the
scheme. The employer’s contributions vest fully once they
are made.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing
and retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations
beyond the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by the
Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt with
in the consolidated income statement for the year are
disclosed in note 7(a) to these financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for
its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong and PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 in respect of
the retirement of its employees.

34.

¥ P

NG Lc A Al NG -
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MAMEEEARRXN  AKEKEF
WML |EME AT -

AEBEBRKRBEAFBIEL 2 BEHFER
REAZEARBRRTRE - YO RMBR
RHMEE7(@) R B EE -

NEE I EF DS KR BELAINT B A RlE S
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RISK MANAGEMENT
S AND POLICIES

he Group’s financial assets include cash and cash

equivalents, trade and other receivables, loan receivables

and trading securities. The Group’s financial liabilities

include, trade and other payables deferred income and

bank borrowings.

The Group does not have nor has issued financial

instruments for trading purposes. Exposure to credit,

liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency, fair value, economic

and business risks arises in the normal course of the

Group’s business.

a) Credit risk

ii)

As at 31 December 2007, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheets after
deducting any impairment allowance.

In respect of trade and other receivables in
order to minimize risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition
is performed on each major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customers operate. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 30 days
from the date of billing. Further quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trading
and other receivables are set out in note 22.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+-_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

35.

B EEEE R ERBUER

AEEZEHEERERERASEFEY
FEN PR M B RUGRIBA R B B E S - K
SEZERABRRREMNERRNEEMEMNRK
B EERARIRITER

AEETEEARBETERIAUMEESH
®o o AEEEHEEBBAREFAREE R
BEE - MK HME - AFE - RERER
FEZ Rk

a) EER K

i) M EELFET_HA=1+—

BRREERBRAGEEE
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HERRRKEE -

i) HEERIKE R 2 FEUER R &
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—HEEBR WHEBEE
RBRETHEER - A5EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT-_A=T—HIEFE UARK3IE)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

a)  Credit risk (Continued) a) fFEERRE)

iii) The majority of the Group’s investments are iii) AREAHBDEZERKRAE
blue clips listed on a recognised stock HRGALEMZEER - ER
exchange. Given their high credit standing, EeEETSR  ERENER
management does not expect any HEMRESF A EEBT
investment counterparty to fail to meet its HEFo
obligations.

iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited iv) HREF A ARZEBEREE
because the counterparties are banks with FREER TR EETR R
high credit ratings assigned by international 7 R RBESZEERR
credit-rating agencies. B °

h) Liquidity risk b) RENE 2 E R

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to board approval. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings
as a source of liquidity.

AEEBETZBYLEEREATH
FEZREEE  BRASAKIE
HRENEBEERAREAHREFE
R MEBREEESHAESAEER - A
SECBRAEHERE R NAFTZ
RBESFER  REEERHZE
R URERARERERTRNRS
SEMEEESREEIG R A
MIEERE R REERRER
PED 2B - REBIKBRITER
ERRBE R HTIR °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE-TT

tFE+ZA=+—BLEFEURAARKIE

== =
K MANAGEMENT 35. BIEREEEEREEX @®
AND POLICIES (continuea)
Liquidity risk (Continued) b) REBELRAR (&)
The following liquidity and interest risk tables set ATREE & R FIEREBREREHINAERE KR
out the weighted average effective interest rate and ARARIZzERABBREER » ERALQRE
the remaining contractual maturities at the balance RN (BIEFERE LT EFE 2 BEAR
sheet date of the Group's and the Company's % WIRIZE - BIREE R E B 2RI &
financial liabilities based on contractual NEEETEE 2 &T BHFE 2 METH
undiscounted cash flows (including interest ERAMERAKTELE -
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company required to pay:
2007 2006
=t & 22 Z2ERE
Weighted Within Maore than More than Total Weighted Maore than Maore than Total
average 1 year or Tyearbut  2yearsbut contractual average 1 year or Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut contractual
effective on demand less than less than  undiscounted Carrying effective on demand less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate —Fh 2 years 5 years cash flow amount interest rate -Fh 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
WETH 9EE  -EML O BEMLE  ANAE WETH 9EE  -EAL O BENL  ANRER a4
LY EXEE  REMA EEMR REHAE EAE LY EXBE  WENA EEMR  ReRAE BAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TT ARBTT ARETn ARETn ARETL ARBTT ARETn ARMTR ARETL ARETR
The Group iy 1]
Trade payables e 130 - - 130 130 NARER % - - % %
Amounts due to ENEENE
directors (note) (i) 10.00% 20,080 - - 20,080 20,080 NATER 1,549 - - 1,549 1,549
Deposits received  AFFUAURE
from customers NARER 17,846 - - 17,846 17,846 NATER 6,111 — — 6,111 6,111
Employees ERBIER
welfare payable NARER 760 - - 60 760 NATER 609 - - 609 609
Accrued expenses  EEEFX R
and other EtERFE
payables NARER 4,194 - = 4,19 4,194 NATER 3997 - - 3997 3997
Other tax payables £ /ESIFE NARER 3 - - m 3 NATER 353 — — 353 353
Deferred income ERRA NATER 1,750 - - 1,750 1,750 NATER 1,616 - - 1,616 1,616
Bank borrowings RikR 6.755% 7,960 - - 7,960 7,960 NATER — = = = =
53,493 - - 53,493 53,493 14,261 — — 14,261 14,261
Note: MIEE -
The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and ZREREER  BAERERKEERES - HEM

interest-free except the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng of RMB18,859,000 (2006: Nil) which is interest-
bearing at 10% per annum.

T BB S 2 FIE AR #18,859,0007T (ZEE R
F ) TIAF R10%5t -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-_ZZT

+tF+=A

=t—HALEFE UAARETIE)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

b)

c)

35. BiiSRE P EE

Liquidity risk (Continued) b) REBELRAR (&)
2007 2006
“RRLE =t 2 %3
Weighted Within Maore than More than Total Weighted More than More than Total
average 1 year or Tyearbut  2yearsbut contractual average 1 year or Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut contractual
effective on demand less than less than  undiscounted Carrying effective on demand less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate —Fh 2 years 5 years cash flow amount interest rate &R 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
WEFS 5EE  -ENE WENL AHER nETS 92E  -ENL RENL  AHARR Ll
KRRz EXEE MEAR BENR  REVHE REE | LEES ZREE REUR BENR  REVHE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT ARMTn ARBTn ARMTRL ARMTR ABMTR AR%Tn ARMTT ARMTn ARETR
The Company 9|
Amounts dug o EREFHE
directors (note) () 10.00% 13,080 - - 13,080 13,080 NATER 4140 e - 4140 4140
Accrued expenses and &R
offer payables HERTE NATER 1922 1,922 1922 NATER = = =
Other tax payables £ fbfESIFE NATER - - - NATER 3 3 3
15,002 - - 15,002 15,002 4143 - - 4143 4143
Note: Bt =E
The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and ZABLREER  BAEERKEERES - HEM

interest-free except the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng of RMB11,859,000 (2006: Nil) which is interest-

bearing

at 10% per annum.

Interest rate risk

ii)

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the group’s cash
and cash equivalents, bank deposits and
bank borrowings. The Group does not use
financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a
general increase of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase the Group’s loss
after income tax and accumulated losses by
approximately RMB200,000 (2006: Nil).

ERBEEZFIAARKLLB859,0007T (ZZEZX
F o E) DAFE10%At °

c)

i)

2= B

AEEEH MR RBERE
BHEAEHE RS NREEE
¥ SRITTE AR R IR AT (8 AR
e AREYERASRITE
TEREHFRRER -

RS

RZTEZLEF+ZA=+—
B - EEF A E L& £ 1001E
I MATBEM A EREER
RIBE - BLAKBERABH
BEBRBRFEEEMOAR

#200,0007T (ZZEX
&) -
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 MANAGEMENT
A.ND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet
date.

d) Foreign currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect
to the foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s
transactional currency is RMB as substantially all
the turnover are within PRC. With the natural
hedging of the revenue and costs being
denominated in RMB the directors believe that the
Group’s transactional foreign exchange exposure
was insignificant and no sensitivity analysis is
required due to immateriality of the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZ+F+_A=+—BHILtFE UAAREFIE)
35. BIEKREREEERBER ®

c)

d)

MEmEbE ()

i) BREST (B

S R 3 AT TR TE N R A
PRBEBRZLERERARNZ
BEENITERETESRT
A =@z - 10018 EF &
FAEEREEEHEET—
EFEaE R AENSER
B R B R fhET

SNERLBR

B AT - NSRBI EE RSNE R A
ZHABE - AEBZRZEELA
R RERKER LMALERGR
BB - ERREEKAAARET
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

e)

f)

Equity price risk

ii)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities listed on the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date. If the prices
of the respective equity securities had been
dropped by 5%; the loss for the year will
increase by RMB216,000 (2006:
RMB150,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of equity securities.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets

and liabilities approximate their respective fair
values as at 31 December 2007 and 2006.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables
(current portion).

The carrying values approximate their fair
values because of the short maturities of
these items.

f)

i)

REBAAZHERER LM
AEFHRERR ESEED
wETRARREE ZREMAS
AREE LR - AREHRE
N E 3 LN R i
BREFZXZAETHRARE
B

BRRE DM

BRESIMERERE B
RRERBETETE ° WSRA
BHENERTESS © BAES
WATESEERAFES
1812 AR #216,0007T (ZF
TRF - AR¥E150,0007T) °
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ii)

iii)

K MANAGEMENT
AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Trading securities

Fair value is base on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs. Fair value
for the unquoted equity investments are
estimated using the for applicable price for
similar listed companies adjusted for the
specific circumstance of the issuer.

Bank borrowing

The carrying amount of bank loans
approximates their fair value based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank
loan with similar terms and maturities.

iv) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries
It is not practical to estimate the fair values
of the amounts due to the related party
nature of these instruments.
g) Economic risk

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected
by significant political, economic and social
uncertainties in the PRC. Although the government

of the PRC has been pursuing economic reform
policies for the past years, no assurance can be
given that the PRC government will continue to

pursue such policies or that such policies may not
be significantly altered.

h) Business risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s operations is

conducted in the PRC. This includes risks

associated with, among others, the political,

economic and legal environment in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

35. BIAREEEEREER »®

f)

g)

h)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

36. COMMITMENTS

a)

b)

36.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital a) REFER  AEBRI R
commitments contracted but not provided for in KRB 2 EZREEWNT
the financial statements as follows:
The Group
AEE
2007 2006
—ZELF —EETX
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFTT
Contracted for: BET4Y ¢
— Plant and equipment — IR R 122,710 =
— Construction-in-progress ~ — fEE& T2 7,379 —
130,089 —
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum b) REEER BEANAEYEZTA]

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of office premises are payable as follows:

34T R TR K0T T 2 R SR BT
EREAEMT

The Group
rEH

2007 2006
—EELHF —ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ET T
Within 1 year 1A 960 21
After 1 year but within 5 years 1&&{B5F R — —
After 5 years AFELAE — —
960 21

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to two years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

AEESZEARBELLHAOBEZY
EZ2AEMA - NIFHEBA—RE—EM
F - AREFEEME GREFREE
BN - 2EMOMERSHAME
& o

TEBBRREEEERAT —ETLFFER
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38.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE-ZTZE

tFE+ZA=+—BLEFEURAARKIE

37. KIWHEE
balance sheet date, the Group had pledged the REEER  AEEZHEA T EEAER
lowing assets to secure bank borrowings granted to the RYIAEBZRITEER
roup:
The Group
REE
2007 2006
= o —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Buildings held for own use FIEERZEF 4,799 —
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 38. HE-EEtLtF+=-A=1+-—
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS BiEFEE BB ERERH
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR &3] ~ TERRZREBUBEER
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 &

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
HKFRSs, HKASs and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2007 and which
have not been adopted in the financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new HKFRSs,
HKASs and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group's results of operations and financial position.

BEZFHHHRRTIEZ A - FE G

REERMETER  HEEUBRRE
A FEGFEALRE  ERBE_TZT
THFEFT-A=+—BLEFERRER A
MBRERLRRAZFER] - HEBMBH
WAER - BAEGIERRE -

AEBELEFEZFER  HEEMBRR
R - A B MREREREREZ
FE -FERRL  ARERR  RAZRE
(BF] ~ FEBMFHERLER - FESHER
RaBHAKE L 2EEE RN EK
BEXFEZARETK -

132

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited Annual Report 2007




For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_ZZLF+_A=+—BLFEURARKIE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

38.

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

(Continued)

The new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for
year ended 31 December 2007 and have not been early

adopted by the Group are as follows:

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC) — Int 11

HK(FRIC) — Int 12

HK(FRIC) — Int 13

HK(FRCI) — Int 14

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March

2007.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2008.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2008.

Presentation of Financial
Statements!
Borrowing Costs!

Operating Segment!

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury
Share Transactions?

Service Concession
Arrangements3

Customer Loyalty Programmes?*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction®

B3 - B R RETH

SE 5

REBE-ZTT+tHF+-_A=+—HBIEFER
MERARER  AEARELBREFRABZ
E5] ~ AN NMERNT

FREGEAELR
(&1E7D)

FB G ERIE235
(&1E7D)

FEMEHR
R £ 85

&8 (BERBME®RE
ERREZBES®)
— REEIR

8 (BER B B RS
ERREZESY)
— REF12%

&8 (BERBME®RE
ERAREZES®)
— REEI3R

8 (BRI RS
ERREZESY)
— REF 145

MBRER 2],

fEERA!

BEHE

BEMBRE
ERFE2F—%KH
KB X 52

PR 75 B & HE 2 B

BF BB

BEGTTERIF19%
— REMNSEE
ZBRE - HIEE
EHEREMA
HERR®S

! R-ZZZNF— A BRHEKRABRZFE

HARAERK o

2 MREERHF=A-—HRERRBZFE

HARAERK ©

2 RZZBENF— A HXEERGZFE

HAR AR »

4 REZEZNFLA - BRERRBZFE

HARAERK o
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ar ended 31 December 2006, the Group
d of certain subsidiaries, the net assets disposed

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZZLFT_A=T—HILEFE UARK3IE)

39. HENEAH

RBE_ZT FT-A=+—HLFE -
AEEHESTHEAR  CHEZEEF

re as follows:- B :
2006
—ZEEREF
RMB'000
AREF T
Net assets disposal of: BEHEZEEFE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - RN 34
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEEY 690
Trade receivables JE Y2 BR 1 50
Other receivables E fh fE U SR8 1,000
Amount due to a related company FE — A& R RIFIR (1)
Employee welfare payables BB TEF (52)
Accrued expenses FEETRAX (59)
Other payables H th & 5 5018 (12)
Minority interests D EIR R B (155)
1,495
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHRBA Rz W 160
Total consideration BR(E 1,655
Satisfied by AR
Cash H& 1,655
Net cash inflow arising on disposal LEMRBZRERAFEE
Cash consideration RERE 965
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Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZT+F+_A=+—HBLEFEUAARKIIE)

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

After the balance sheet date, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, Jumbo Lane Investments Limited (“Jumbo
Lane”), had disposed of an aggregate of 16,960,000 shares
to independent third parties for the consideration of HK$0.95
per share on 11 February 2008. The numbers of shares of
the Company held by Jumbo Lane had been reduced from
349,750,000 shares to 332,790,000 shares; thus, making
the equity interests in the Company held by Jumbo Lane had
been approximately dropped from 61.62% to 58.63% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company.

On 9 March 2008, Jumbo Lane and the independent third
parties agreed to place and to purchase an aggregate of placing
shares of 53,000,000 shares at HK$1.00 each. Moreover, the
Company agreed to issue and Jumbo Lane conditionally agreed
to subscribe for 53,000,000 shares at a price of HK$1.00 each.
Thus, the independent third parties received 53,000,000 of
placing shares representing approximately 8.54% of existing
issued shares capital of the Company. Jumbo Lane also
received 53,000,000 of subscription shares and now Jumbo
Lane representing approximately 53.62% of existing issued
share capital of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no significant
related party transactions as required by HKAS24 "Related
Party Disclosures" to be disclosed in the financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-classified in
conformity to the current year's presentation of the financial
statements.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2007, the directors consider the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Jumbo Lane, which is
incorporated in BVI. Jumbo Lane does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on
26 March 2008.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

PEEELCE

HEBRRER

#KEA®%R RN-TT/N\F-_A+—H &2
AIZIERRREERERBRAR ([EE]) &
BRRM0.9SE T ZREMBLE=FLE
4 $£16,960,000/% (% 10 - BEZE B R AR]
Fr#F A2 R 21 B F1349,750,0008% 52 =
332,790,0000% : #utt - BEREBR A UL
RAARBRBEEITRAN 2L HIE AL
61.62% 5 &= 4958.63% °

R—ZEZN\F=ANA BEREBEYE=FH

ERERIOOETREERBEA &
53,000,000/ BE & i fp o o - AR RIRE
BT REEHR KGR EREES3,000,0008% 0
1 BRAESRRMD1.008T - Bt B
55 = J7 #15853,000,0008 BE & B 1D - (hAR A
AR A B BEITIRAAS.54% - EFEINETS
53,000,000i8 REEMR D « BB EGA QT
RBE B BITIRALS3.62% °

o] 5%

RELSRS

EERA AEEYERBEEESER24
SIRESRE | ARMBERRAKEZEX
RERRS -

EERBF

ETHBREFE TEI - UTEARFEMK
HERZENHH -

REERT

R-ZBZALF+_A=+—HB EERAAK
SESKERSTAEE  —FKRNEBRLE
SEMKRIH AT - EELBIEHAIEIR
B2 BEREK -

MEHmzRZ2BB

AP BHRROCHESTER _TTN\F=H_
TRERG -

TEBERRESERRAR —_ TR LFERH
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ES

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
“EELE LT RF —TTREF —ZETMF —TT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETTT
Turnover 49,399 25,773 31,246 17,985 16,287
Profit/(loss) before B B8 %1 Al
income tax B/ (B8 965 (6,618) 1,399 657 141
Income tax B3 (3,465) 27 (461) (753) 238
(Loss)/profit before Rzt VBRI ERS
minority interests A (&518) /I (2,500) (6,591) 938 (96) 379
Minority interests 2 SRR E = — — - 95 329
(Loss)/profit AEE (BE),/
for the year gl (2,500) (6,591) 938 (1) 708
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
i3 -3 e —ZTTHF —ZENF —ET=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETTT ARETTT ARET T ARETTT
Total assets BEE 162,649 57,100 60,032 55,583 55,904
Total liabilities BafE (55,990) (14,772) (10,651) (7,908) (6,424)
Minority interests 2 SRR E = — — (155) (155) (488)
Shareholders’ BRES
fund 106,659 42,328 49,226 47,520 48,992
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